Lapeer County Board of Commissioners

255 Clay Street, Suite 301
Lapeer, Michigan 48446
Phone: (810) 667-0366

Fax: (810) 667-0369
www.lapeercountymi.gov

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

A-G-E-N-D-A
**COMMISSION CHAMBERS**
December 14, 2023

9:00 A.M.
** Motion# 368-2023 Gave this C.0.W. Meeting Authority to Act on Any Matters**

GENERAL BUSINESS
. CHAIRMAN CALL TO ORDER

o ROLL CALL ATTENDANCE BY CLERK
o OPENING PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
o APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

o CONSIDERATION OF THE DRAFT MINUTES FROM THE NOVEMBER 09, 2023
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING

o DISTRIBUTION AND REVIEW OF OVERNIGHT TRAVEL REQUESTS, GRANT
APPLICATIONS AND BUDGET AMENDMENTS (throughout the meeting)

° DEPARTMENT HEAD UPDATES — (As needed, No Action Required)

o PUBLIC TIME — Citizens Comments (maximum of 3 minutes per person)

NEW BUSINESS

1) THE KELLY FIRM, PLC - Introduction for Legal Services and Consideration of Draft
Agreement.

2) EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT - Request to accept the Grant Agreement for the FY21
Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) funds that were approved and accepted to
reimburse the County for the renewal of the Everbridge NIXLE Alerting Service.

3) ANIMAL CONTROL — Request to accept the 2024 Animal Welfare Grant (MDARD) to be
used towards Project A - Spay/Neuter of Adoptable Animals.

4) COUNTY CLERK — Notice of Expiring Board Appointment Terms (see attachment)
A. Agricultural Preservation Board — 2 expiring three-year terms
B. Brownfield Redevelopment Authority — 7 expiring three-year terms
C. Economic Development Corp — 2 expiring six-year terms
D. Emergency Planning Committee/Emergency Management Advisory Committee
(EMAC) — 9 expiring two-year terms
Valley Area Agency on Aging (VAAA) Executive Board — 2 expiring two-year terms
Continued—

m



Committee of the Whole December 14, 2023 Page 2

5) ADMINISTRATION/BOC/FINANCE -
A. Request Authorization to pay Shifman Fournier for Labor Services through November
30, 2023 (detailed invoice was made available to commissioners for review,)
B. Request to Renew the Workers Compensation Service Agreement with
Comprehensive Risk Services, LLC for a two-year period (FY 2024 and 2025).
C. Request to Adopt the MERS Resolution and other Documents for Elected
Commissioners Only.
D. Request to Terminate the current Legal Counsel Agreement with the Prosecuting
Attorney.
E. Draft Proposed Motions
1. Properties Committee on 11/30/2023 (see attached)
2. Broadband Committee on 12/8/23 (see attached)

OLD BUSINESS

6)

ADDITIONAL ITEMS (if needed)
7)

OTHER BUSINESS

e PUBLIC TIME- Citizens Comments (maximum of 3 minutes per person)

e COMMISSIONERS' REPORTS
e ADMINISTRATOR AND/OR CFO UPDATES
o **CLOSED SESSION** (only if needed)

ADJOURN -

** Public Recording Notice: Please be advised that the meetings of the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners are streamed live and
recorded on social media for public viewing and transparency. We respectfully request that anyone addressing the Board of Commissioners
during “Public Time" be proactive and make every effort in keeping their words and language appropriate for ALL users, including children for
educational purposes.

The County Controller/Administrator shall not edit or delete video of any County Commissioner Meeting. Should any issue arise with any
content of a meeting video, the Board of Commission members shall be notified. Discretion as to changes to recordings/videos rests solely
with the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners. However, a language/content warning may be added to the description of a video when
appropriate by the Administrator. (rev. 6/22/2023) **

Upcoming Meetings/Public Hearings/Events:
ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING - 01/04/2024 @ 9:00 a.m.

SPECIAL FULL BOARD MEETING- 01/04/2024 @ 9:30 a.m.
NEXT C.0.W MEETING - 01/11/2024
FOLLOWING FULL BOARD: 01/25/2024

All sub-committee meeting agendas are posted on the
County website if they are being held.




COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
November 9, 2023
9:00 a.m.

Chairman Kohiman called the meeting to order at 9:02 a.m. in the Commission Chambers
on the lower level of the County Complex Building. Commissioner Mast opened the
meeting with a prayer. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

Present: Commissioners Truman Mast, Bryan Zender, Brad Haggadone, William
Hamilton, Gary Howell, Kevin Knisely, Tom Kohlman

Others: Moses Sanzo, County Controller/Administra;to‘r;:‘:- Jackie Arnold, Chief
Financial Officer, Lynette Stanford, SecretaryID\,,_ﬁ'uty County Clerk

Motion by Knlsely, supported by Haggadone, to approve the agenda with the deletion of
a closed session. Motion carried.

Motion by Haggadone, supported by Howell, to.2) {‘_,pf‘ove the minutes fromthe October 12,
2023 Committee of the Whole Meeting, as présented. Motion carried.

Elected Official/Department Head Updates

Kathy Haskins, R.N., B.S.N., MPH..L
Senior Programs statistics.

éctor/Health

ficer gave an update regarding the

Theresa M. Spencer, County Clerk gave an gardmg the November 7, 2023

Election.

) = ubli& Hearing regarding the
- 2024-2025 Biennial Operating Budgets

Chairman Kohlman ann unced that the purpose of the public hearing is to listen to
comments from the: pubhc regarding the 2024-2025 Biennial Operating Budgets.

Chairman Kohlman declared the public hearing in session and opened the floor to the
public for comments. No comments were received. Chairman Kohiman declared the
public hearing closed.

Motion by Knisely, supported by Haggadone, pursuant to motion 325-2023 of the October
26, 2023 Regular Board Meeting, giving the Committee of the Whole the authority to act,
which shall include forwarding the motion to the next regular meeting to be entered into
the record, to adopt the following General Appropriations Act Resolution and adopt the
2024-2025 Biennial Budgets:



Committee of the Whole November 9, 2023 Page 2 of 10

LAPEER COUNTY MICHIGAN

GENERAL APPROPRIATION ACT
2023-R11

RESOLUTION TO AMEND & ADOPT THE BIENNIAL BUDGET

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,
WHEREAS,

WHEREAS;'

FOR

JANUARY 1, 2024 TO DECEMBER 31, 2024 (AMEND)
AND
JANUARY 1, 2025 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2025 (ADOPT)
ON
November 09, 2023

In 2003, the County Board of Commissioners dlrected that a blenmal budget process be
established in an effort to improve the efficiency of the complex budget process, reduce time
in the respective departments necessary for budget preparatlon and to enhance fiscal planning
and stability; and, .

Section 16 of the “Uniform Budgeting and Accnunﬁng-_Aét" requires that an appropriation act be
adopted by this County Board of Commissioners in order to implement the operating budgets of
the County of Lapeer for FY 2024 and FY 2025; and,

The Lapeer County Board of Commissioners is the statutorily de5|gnated “legislative body" for
the County Budget function under the’ Unlform Budgeting and Accounting Act (MCL 141.421);
and, o

All County Elected Officials, Judges and apponnted Department Heads were afforded the
opportunlty L appear before the County Board of Commissioners to discuss their budget

The Board of Commlssmners has taken into consideration the fact that certain mandatory
functions of County govemment or operations must be budgeted at serviceable levels in order

o provide statutory and constltutlonally required services and programs, and that other

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

_essential and non-mandatory services are budgeted to meet operational and community
\needs and, :

Fifty percent (50%) of the proceeds of the Convention Facilities/Liquor Tax revenue received
from the State are used for the specific purpose of substance abuse prevention programs in
the County; and,

A public notice was published in a newspaper of general circulation on June 14, 2023, and a
public hearing was held on June 22, 2023, consistent with the “Truth in Taxation Act,” to
consider increasing the operating tax millage rate by .5117 mills for FY 2023; and,

The Board of Commissioners at a meeting on June 22, 2023, adopted the following tax rates
to be levied for the 2023 tax year/2023/2024 budget year for a County levy of 3.6258 and extra
voted millage as summarized below based on the 2023 Taxable Value $3,778,235,974 for a
total millage rate of :



Committee of the Whole

(Resolution 2023-R11 continued)

WHEREAS,

FY 2024 Est. Net Revenue
Revenue Revenue
General $ 673,782.00 $ 13,025,346.00
Govemment
Law Enforcement. $ 4,571.00 $ 5,473,871.00
EMS ™ =, ,'i-‘ﬁ =, (kK -0- $ -0-
- I"Veterans $ 68499400 $ -0- $ 684,994.00
| Medical Care | $ 1,207,524.00 $ -0- $ 1,207,524.00
Facility . =N
Senior Services | $:. 1,479,557.00 $ -0- $ 1,479,557.00
Total $ 22,549,645.00 $ 678,353.00 $ 21,871,292.00
= FY 4 2025 Est. Millage Est. Captured Est. Net Revenue
e Revenue Revenue
General $ 14,110,102.00 $ 693,995.00 $13,416,107.00
Government
Law Enforcement | $ 5,642,795.00 $  4,708.00 $ 5,638,087.00
EMS $ 0- $ -0- $ -0-
Veterans $ 705,544.00 $ -0- $ 705,544.00
Medical Care | $ 1,243,750.00 $ -0- $ 1,243,750.00
Facility
Senior Services $ 1,523,944.00 $ -0- $ 1,523,944.00
Total $ 23,226,135.00 $ 698,703.00 $22,527,432.00

November 9, 2023 Page 3 of 10

Purpose Millage Revenue
General Government 3.6258 $13,699,128.00
Total Allocated Millage 3.6258 $ 13,699,128.00
Law Enforcement (voted through 2027) 1.4500 $ 5,478,442.00
Veterans (voted through 2023) 1813 $ 684,994.00
Medical Care Facility 3196 $1,207,524.00
Operating (voted through 2027) r

Senior Citizen (voted through 2026) 3916 $ 1.479,557.00
Total extra voted Milage 23425' 5 8850517.00

Total Millage

The revenue projections in the 2024/2025 Budget are rec
of captured revenue by Tax.Increment Finan
Authorities in local jurisdictions as'summanzed

fuced to reflect the estimated amount
_ horities and Downtown Development
e

s Milaos”

Eét;@ptured




Committee of the Whole November 9, 2023 Page 4 of 10

(Resolution 2023-R11 continued)

WHEREAS, The voters have supported “special millages” (e.g. for Senior Services, Veterans, Law
Enforcement/ Public Safety, Medical Care Facility) that various Public Acts allow local units of
government to supersede by partially “capturing” revenue that may consequently not be
available for the extra voted program as noted above; and,

WHEREAS, A Committed Fund Balance is established for self-funding of $5,000,000.00, and a transfer
from the Delinquent Tax Revolving Fund of $2,000,000.00 for FY 2024 and $1,500,000.00 for
FY 2025 to the General Fund is hereby authorized; and,

WHEREAS, State Revenue Sharing in the amount of $2,002,994.00 is antxc1pated for FY 2024, and the
amount for FY 2025 is estimated at $1,502,245.50; and,

WHEREAS, Pursuant to MCL 141.412, section 2, a notice regarding the proposed budget was published in
a newspaper of general circulation on October 29,.2023, and was placed on display in the
County Clerk's office and the county's website from October 30 through November 9, 2023,
and a public hearing was conducted on November 9, 2023; and,

WHEREAS, the County of Lapeer will be convertmg toa September 30" year end beginning in 2025,
therefore, all budget figures and documents reflect only 9 full months of calendar year 2025, in
which this and all future budget years will be consistent with the State of Michigan's fiscal year
of October 1st through September 30 :

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the FY 2024 and FY 2025 Lapeer County Budgets as summarized
below are hereby adopted on a fund and activity basis for the General Fund and for all other
funds, subject to all statutory and. County pohcles regardlng the expenditure of funds and the
conditions set forth in this Resolution: -

: 2024 Amended Budget 2025 Budget
General Fund - $ 23,936,951.99 $ 21,362,491.63
Special Revenue Funds = $ 88,599,350.23 $ 72,488,988.50
Debt ServiceFunds ——~+ § :1”,101 745.69 $936,582.20
»TOTALS - 113.638.047.91 $04,788.062.33

BE IT FURTHER RESGLVED that an Assigned fund balance (GF) is established in the amount of
$500,000.00 for FY 2024 and $500,000.00 for FY 2025; and,

BEIT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners direct the Controller/Administrator to present
neCessary changes to the 2025 budget to the Board prior to the beginning of fiscal year 2025
forﬂnal adopt|on and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Elected Officials, Judges and appointed Department Heads are advised
that certain line item transfers with the respective budgets will not be authorized; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all persons responsible for the Administration of this budget be duly
advised of the contents of Public Act 621 of 1978, as amended, and their respective
appropriations and responsibilities to not authorize or participate in the expenditures of funds
except as authorized by this General Appropriations Act; and,



Committee of the Whole November 9, 2023 Page 5 of 10

(Resolution 2023-R11 continued)

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that to ensure compliance with the Uniform Budgeting Act, all Officials and
employees of Lapeer County shall follow Claim Processing and Purchasing Procedures and
the Personnel Policies as adopted and amended by the Board of Commissioners and that the
budgeted funds are appropriated contingent upon compliance with said Purchasing Procedures
and Personnel Manual; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the approved employee positions on the Position Control Maintenance
File shall limit the number of employees who shall be employed, and no funds are appropriated
for any position or employee not on the “Approved Position Control Maintenance File.” Further,
there may be a need to increase or decrease various positions within the Budget and/or impose
a hiring freeze and/or reduction in staff due to unforeseen. ﬁnancnal changes; therefore, the
“Approved Position Control List" may be changed from time to time by the Board and/or the
Board may impose a hiring freeze. The County Elected ‘Officials, Judges and the County
Department Heads shall comply with changes aﬁected by the. Board if any, relative to the
approved positions and the number of employees (stated in the Posmon Control List; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this budget does not uthonze any other compensatlon adjustment(s)
without expressed authority of the Board_ ommlssmners and -

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that certain positions autho""\ ‘ udget, which are suppor’(ed in part by
grants or other sources of outside funding, a approved contingent upon the County
receiving the budgeted rever The Elected Official, Judge, and/or Department Head
responsible for program admn 1:sh mmedlately' otify the Controller/Administrator in
unty |s'notif ed that such funding has been

) evenues and expenditures may vary from those
contemplated the Board of Commissiohers may adjust the budget during the fiscal year as
deemed n cessary,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Controllerl Iministrator is authorized to automatically reduce a
department budget each time a reduction is made in federal, state, or local funds. The
affected Elected Ofﬁclal Judge or Department Head shall promptly take the necessary
corrective actlon to reduce expendltures as a result; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Controller/Administrator is hereby authorized to make
- budgetary transfers within the various funds and to authorize expenditures in accordance with
the}budgetary rocedures established by the Board of Commissioners; and,

BE IT FURTHER Rééo ED, that the Board of Commissioners authorize, that as long as the balance in the
Budget Stabilization Fund is under the amount allowed by Michigan Public Act 30 of 1978,
that the fund be allowed to accrue interest eaming without a separate Board motion; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all County Departments include indirect cost as determined by the most
recent Cost Allocation Plan in all applications for federal and state grants and further; where
indirect costs are not included in the approved grant budget, a memorandum explaining the
reason for not including them in the grant must be submitted with the Request for Action to
approve the grant; and,



Committee of the Whole November 9, 2023 Page 6 of 10

(Resolution 2023-R11 continued)

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all grant submissions to the Board of Commissioners shall clearly indicate
the minimum required match and if any requirements exist in the grant that require the
County to continue the program when the grant concludes; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in order to ensure compliance with all board policies and procedures, and
pursuant to Motion #55-21, the Board has authorized the County Controller/Administrator to
approve initial submissions of grant application requests, without prior Board approval,
however, all grant acceptance requests must be processed and approved by the Board of
Commissioners prior to accepting any and all grants; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that to ensure compliance with all Board pollcy and procedures, that all
confracts will be brought before the Board of Commlssmners at a regularly scheduled
meeting for authorization, and only the Board of Commlssmners as the governing body can
enter into a contract for the County, or any of its:Departments; and,.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that pursuant to the Uniform Budgeting Act, the Board -of Commissioners
designates the County Controller/Administrator as the Chief Administrative Officer and
Budget Officer pursuant to MCLA 141 421 et. Seq., with the authority to administer such
duties in connection with said budget, and as may be from time to time, delegated to the
Office of Controller by thls Board and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Treasurer andlor County Controller/Administrator are
authorized to borrow between funds within the common (general) bank account of the
County within the guidelines as establis_hed by the Board of Commissioners.

Roll Call vote: Knisely, aye, Haggadone, aye; Hamilton, aye; Howell, aye; Mast, aye;
Zender, aye; Kohiman, aye. 7ayes Motion carried unanimously.

Karen Southgate, Dlrector of Mlchrgan Department of Health and Human Services
(MDHHS) for Huron; Lapeer and Tuscola Counties gave a presentation and brief update
regardmg her Department :

Shea Baker Admmrstrator at the’*Lépeer County Medical Care Facility, gave an update
regarding. thelr programs.

Motion by Howell supported by Haggadone, to recommend to the Full Board, to allow the
Sheriff's Department to accept the Secondary Road Patrol Grant (416), (CFDA# 2024-
SRP-44), for the Year 2023/2024, in the amount up to $129,533.00. Motion carried.

Motion by Knisley, supported by Hamilton, to recommend to the Full Board, to authorize
the Lapeer County Sheriff's Department renewal with Canteen Services, to provide meals,
commissary and kiosk services for inmates, with meals being paid for from line item 207-
351-740.000; and further, to authorize the Chair/Vice-Chair to sign said contract. Motion
carried.



Committee of the Whole November 9, 2023 Page 7 of 10

Motion by Haggadone, supported by Knisley, to recommend to the Full Board, to approve
for distribution the 2024 Police Service Contracts for the following local units of
government, for their signatures: Arcadia Township, Attica Township, Deerfield Township,
Elba Township, Imlay Township, Marathon Township, Mayfield Township, Oregon
Township, Village of Clifford, Village of North Branch, and Fund: 277, with the signed
contracts to be returned for final approval of the Board of Commissioners. Motion carried.

Motion by Zender, supported by Haggadone, to recommend to the Full Board, to authorize
the Sheriff's Department to purchase protective vest and uniforms, at a cost of $19,096.20,
from line item 207-307-977.000, at no additional cost to the County General Fund. Motion
carried. ,

Motion by Hamilton, supported by Mast, to recommend to th_:_e_;’Fuu Board, to accept the
Fiscal Year 2024 Michigan Department of Health and Human Services (MDHHS)
additional allocation and authorize the Director/Health: Ofﬁc to.e-sign the application;
and that a copy be forwarded to the County Clerk, to be entered mto the official record as
an exhibit. Motion carried.

Motion by Zender, supported by Hamilton, to. recommend to the Full Board .to authorize
the County Controller/Administrator to electronically accept! the approved grant ‘agreement
between the State Court Administrative Office, 71A District Court and 4-th Circuit Court
for the period of October 1, 2023 through Septemb"' 30, 2024, (funding for Drug Court),
at no additional cost to the County General Fund: Nrand further that a copy of the
electronically submitted grant agreemer 'be fon/varded t A_,the County Clerk to be filed as
an official exhibit. Motion carried. ~ :

\rough September 30, 2024, (funding for Mental Health
: 'nty General Fund; and further, that a copy of the

Motron by Zender, supported by.Haggadone to recommend to the Full Board, to approve
the contract between the Thumb Area Regional Community Corrections Advisory Board
and Tri- Cap, S0 services c¢an be provided per the contract, for the period of October 1,
2023 through September 30 2024; and further, to authorize the Chair/Vice-Chair to sign
said contract. Motlon camed

Motion by Zender, supported by Haggadone, to recommend to the Full Board, to approve
the contract between the Thumb Area Reglonal Community Corrections Advisory Board
and List Psychological Services, PLC, so services can be provided per the contract, for
the period of October 1, 2023 through September 30, 2024; and further, to authorize the
Chair/Vice-Chair to sign said contract. Motion carried.

Motion by Hamilton, supported by Knisely, to recommend to the Full Board, to approve
the contract between the Thumb Area Regional Community Corrections Advisory Board
and Career Directions Inc., so services can be provided per the contract, for the period of
October 1, 2023 through September 30, 2024; and further, to authorize the Chair/Vice-
Chair to sign said contract. Motion carried.



Committee of the Whole November 9, 2023 Page 8 of 10

Motion by Hamilton, supported by Knisley, to recommend to the Fuil Board, to authorize
payment to Shifman Fournier, in the amount of $1,665.00, for labor related legal services
rendered through October 31, 2023, to be paid from line item 101-239-801.020. Motion
carried.

Motion by Zender, supported by Mast, to recommend to the Full Board, to approve the
renewal of the Independent Contractor Agreement, as submitted; for the Managed
Assigned Counsel Administrator between the County of Lapeer and Attorney Kayleen
Hendler, for the County’s Indigent Defense Program, effective Fiscal Year 2024 for the
period of October 1, 2023 through September 30, 2024, pursuant to the approved grant;
and at no addltronal cost to the County General Fund; and further, to authorize the
Chair/Vice-Chair to sign said agreement. Motion carried.

Motion by Howell, supported by Haggadone, to recommend ’to the Full Board, that the
Lapeer County Plannrng Commission and Board of Commrssroners -acknowledges receipt
of Burnside Township’s PA 116 Application submitted by applicants’ Thomas and Marlene
McLeod for Section No. 14, Town No. 9N, Range 12 E, Parcel # 005-014-007-10,
approximately 35.027 acres for a period.0f 31 years, and on November 9, 2023
recommends approval of said application. Motlon carrned

Motion by Haggadone, supported by.Zender, to recommend to the Full Board, to give the
County Controller/Administrator and/or Chief Financial  Officer the authority to act and
approve all Budget Amendments, Appropriation Transfers, Payroll and Accounts Payable
disbursements through December 31, 2023. Motion carried.

Motion by Hamilton, supported by Zender, to 're,commend to tne Full Board, to adopt and
authorize the 2024 annual salary for the County Elected Officials, as follows, for the period
of January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024 (26 pays):

County Commlssroner S ;.$ 22, 317 79
County Surveyor* = $50-
Register-of Deeds $ 80,687.01
Drain Commssroner' e $ 80,687.01
; County Clerk ; 3 88,456.98
“County Treasurer = ~$ 88,456.98
County Sheriff $ 128,751.50
Prosecutlng Attorney: $ 150,800.00
Circuit Court Judges** $ 4572400
District Court Judges** $ 45,724.00
Probate Court_Judge** $172,134.62
Road Commissioners $ 9,206.54

*(Base is zero, but only earns as allowed through the Remonumentation Grant)
**(Judges Salaries are set by the State of Michigan)

No action taken for the previous motion.



Committee of the Whole

Motion by Zender, supported by Mast, to recommend to the Full Board, to amend the
previous motion adopt and authorize the 2024 annual salary for the County Elected
Officials, as follows, for the period of January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024 (26

November 9, 2023

Page 9 of 10

pays):

County Commissioner $ 22,317.79
County Surveyor* $ -0-
Register of Deeds $ 80,687.01
Drain Commissioner $ 80,687.01
County Clerk $ 88,456.98
County Treasurer $ 88,456.98
County Sheriff $128,751.50
Prosecuting Attorney $ 150,800.00
Circuit Court Judges** $ 45,724.00
District Court Judges** $ 45,724.00
Probate Court Judge** $172,134.62
Road Commissioners $ 957480

*(Base

is zero, but only earns as allow: hrough the Remonumentatron Grant)

**(Judges Salaries are set by the State of Mrchlgan)

Motion carried.
Motion by Haggadone, supported by i

and authorize an annual 4% pay incre‘aé;e for FY;
with an effective date of December 23,2023 thr:

."‘/',v.""-TeamSters General Unit

| h;pec:‘e_”mber 20, 2024, as budgeted:

Appomted Depart ent Head
General and Cour Non Unlon

Teamsters Dlstnct Court Unit
Teamsters Friend. -of the Court Unit
Teamsters CMH Unit*

POLC Sheriff's Unit A

" POAM Sheriff's Unit B
“POLC Sheriffs Unit C

POLG Sheriff's Unit D

MAPE — 911 Supervisors Unit

POAM - 911 Dispatchers Unit

Other Non-Union/No-Union/Variable Hourly and Contractual No-Union

Motion carried.

to recommend to the Full Board, to adopt
24 to the followmg groups listed below



Committee of the Whole November 9, 2023 Page 10 of 10

Motion by Haggadone, supported by Howell, to recommend to the Full Board, to authorize
the County Administration/Finance Office to instruct the Municipal Employees’ Retirement
System (MERS) to process an adjustment as of December 31, 2022 to the following
groups’ Post Employment Health Care Savings Plan from the PEHP Fund for any eligible
vested full-time employee actively on payroll as of the date implemented by the County
Administrator/ Controller with 10 years or more of continuous service, which is based on
the calculation of $10/per month as outlined below for a grand total of $303,950.00:

General Non-Union $ 39,480.00
Appointed Department Heads $ 18,380.00
Elected Officials $ 8,030.00
Health Non-Union $2,610.00
CMH Non-Union $ 17, 340 00
AFSCME $16,930.00
Teamsters General o 31 750 00
Teamsters District Court '$19,810:00
Teamsters Friend of the Court $ 5,530.00
Teamsters CMH $ 39,620.00 .
POLC Sheriff's Unit A $ 34,660.00
POAM Sheriff's Unit B -$27,050.00
POLC Sheriff's Unit C - $15,580.00
POLC Sheriff's Unit D $ 17,580.00
MAPE — 911 Supervisors $ 3,310.00
POAM - 911 Dispatchers $6,290.00

Motion carried.
Public Time — Seven people spoke during public time.

Commissioner R@rts

At this time, the Commlssmners had an opportumty to give brief reports on meetings and
conferences that they have recently attended, as well as upcoming meetings and events,
along W|th statements regardlng public time comments.

Motlon by Hamilton, to allow Admlnlstratlon to look into the feasibility of doing a community
survey to find out the citizen's priority for spending the American Rescue Plan Act
Committee (ARPA) money. _Motlon failed for lack of support.

County Contrelle'flAgministrator and/or Chief Financial Officer updates

Moses Sanzo, County Controller/Administrator indicated that his staff will be working on
creating a list of the various committees/board appointments and expiration dates for each
appointment.

Motion by Haggadone, supported by Knisely, to adjourn the meeting. 11:43 a.m.

Tom Kohlman, Chairman
Committee of the Whole



REQUEST FOR ACTION

DATE: December 7, 2023

X REQUEST FOR ACTION
FOR YOUR INFORMATION
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

TO: Lapeer County Board of Commissioners

FROM: Administration/BOC

% 3k ok sk ok ok sk ok ok ok ok ok ok 3k 3k ok sk ok sk sk sk sk ok sk sk sk ok ok ok sk ok ok sk ok ok sk ok ok ok ok sk sk sk sk sk 3k sk sk ok sk sk sk sk sk 3k ok ok sk 3 sk ok 3k ok ok ok ok ok ok ok sk ok ok skok ok

SUMMARY OF REQUEST / INFORMATION: The BOC's special Legal Counsel
Services Ad Hoc Committee consisting of Commissioners Howell, Hamilton and Kohlman
met on Monday, December 4" and interviewed two firms after narrowing it down from
the seven proposals that were submitted. The Committee interviewed both The Kelly
Firm, PLC, and Fletcher Fealko Shoudy & Francis PC Law Firm.

After careful consideration and discussion, the Committee recommended that The Kelly

Firm attend the December 14" COW Meeting to give an introduction and answer any
questions from the entire Board.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: A draft motion is prepared should the board make
the determination to engage the services of The Kelly Firm.

CONTACT PERSON(S): Moses Sanzo, County Controller/Doreen Clark, Office Manager

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:

DRAFT MOTIONS:

Motion by supported by to approve the attached
Attorney-Client Fee Agreement between the County of Lapeer and The Kelly Firm , PLC,
for General/Legal Counsel Services for a period of three years, effective January 1, 2024
through December 31, 2026; and further, to authorize the Chairman to sign said
agreement.




ATTORNEY-CLIENT FEE AGREEMENT
AS TO THE COUNTY OF LAPEER

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this day of December, 2023
between the County of Lapeer (hereinafter "Lapeer" or "the County"), located at 255 Clay
Street, Suite 301, Lapeer, Ml 48446 and The Kelly Firm, PLC (hereinafter the "Law Firm"),
located at 2825 University Drive, Auburn Hills, Michigan 48326. The client requires legal
services and retains The Kelly Firm, PLC to provide same.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Lapeer is a County charged with the privilege and responsibility of
carrying out the functions of a municipality within the geographic limits of Lapeer, Oakland
County, Michigan; and

WHEREAS, these functions include the exercise of the entire panoply of powers
vested in a County within the State of Michigan; and

WHEREAS, it has been the experience of Lapeer that said functions are best
performed upon the advice and with the assistance of competent legal counsel; and

WHEREAS, the Law Firm is able and experienced in matters of municipal law and
capable of providing the quality of complete legal services which Lapeer will require.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions
hereafter enumerated and agreed by the parties as follows:

1. The County of Lapeer does hereby retain The Kelly Firm, PLC, as general
counsel and County attorney for the performance of legal services hereunder set forth.
The County does and reserves the right to appoint and use other legal counsel and Law

Firms at their sole discretion.



2. The County does hereby appoint Daniel J. Kelly to serve the County as lead
counsel of The Kelly Firm on behalf of the County. Said counsel may appoint such other
members and associates of the Law Firm, as shall be deemed appropriate.

3. The Parties agree and acknowledge that the Law Firm is an independent
contractor and not an employee of the County.

4. The Law Firm shall perform all legal services necessary to the duties and
functions required by the County of Lapeer and as assigned by the County
Administrator/Controller, County Administration and/or Board of Commissioners. Such
duties assigned to the Law Firm may include the following, but are not limited to:

4.1 Attendance at the offices of Lapeer at such times and in such
quarters as may be designated by the County Administrator/Controller, County
Administration and/or Board of Commissioners:;

4.2  Representation of the County as assigned in all litigation to which it
is a party in all Courts;

4.3  Representation of the County in all matters assigned to the Law Firm
by the County Administrator/Controller, County Administration and/or Board of
Commissioners, or as designated herein or otherwise designated by the County
as appropriate and proper;

4.4  Attendance as requested at Board of Commissioners’ meetings or
other public meetings upon request of the County Administrator/Controller, County
Administration and/or Board of Commissioners. The Law Firm acknowledges that
it shall report to the County as requested by the County Administrator/Controller,

or when otherwise deemed appropriate.

Page 2 of 7



4.5 All consultation with elected officials and department heads as
requested and as necessary to perform the functions of the County;

4.6 Preparation and presentation of all legal opinions requested and
authorized under the policies and practices of the County;

4.7 Representation of the County in all matters assigned and arising
before Administrative Courts, Tribunals or other Regulatory Agencies as a result
of the ordinary and usual governmental functions of the County;

4.8 Consultation and drafting of all County ordinances and laws;

4.9 Consultation, negotiating, and drafting of all County contracts;

4.10 Preparation of all deeds and conveyances of real estate to which the
County is a party, including examination of title thereto;

4.11 Representation of the County in all matters of Eminent Domain as
requested by the County Administrator/Controller, County Administration and/or
Board of Commissioners;

4.12 Representation of the County in all matters related to environmental,
water/sewer, land use, zoning, and planning matters;

4.13 Research and Response to any and all Freedom of Information Act
Requests provided by the County and Open Meetings Act issues or alleged
violations;

4.14 Representation and provide general legal services to the County in
all matters requested by the County Administrator/Controller, County
Administration and/or Board of Commissioners as authorized by law, this

agreement or the policies and practices of the County.

Page 3 of 7



5. The County understands that it will be charged for legal services performed
by the attorneys of the Law Firm at the following rates:

5.1 For Attorney Legal Services, the Firm shall charge the hourly rate of
$175.00 per chargeable hour for all attorneys of the Firm.

2.2  For litigation Attorney Legal Services, the Firm shall charge the
hourly rate of $175 per chargeable hour for all attorneys of the Firm.

5.3  Travel and mileage will be billed in accordance with the IRS-
published rate or as otherwise agreed by the parties.

2.4  Notwithstanding the foregoing, any and all costs and expenses
incurred on behalf of the County will be disclosed and billed in the Firm’s monthly
invoice of legal services.

9.5  This Agreement will commence on January 1, 2024, for a term of
three (3) years, expiring on December 31, 2026. The Firm and the County may
extend this contract for a term and upon conditions as mutually agreed to in writing.
Unless terminated or revised by mutual agreement, this Agreement will
automatically extend for additional one-year period(s) under the same terms and
conditions and subject to either party’s right to terminate upon sixty (60) days’
notice as set forth in Section 7 below. At the conclusion of three (3) years of
services being performed, The Firm and County may meet to re-negotiate the
terms of this Contract, with the intent to review the reasonableness of the fees set
forth above.

5.6 The Law Firm will bill the County once per month for all hourly work

performed in the previous month. The County will receive a statement for services

Page 4 of 7



rendered each month, and the County within thirty (30) days of receipt shall pay
said invoice and reimburse the Law Firm all expenses incurred on behalf of the
County. The Law Firm will only bill for direct and reasonable expenses and
litigation costs (court fees and costs, discovery and deposition expenses, expert
fees and expenses, travel and other direct litigation costs), with no additional
multiplier or fee added;

5.7 The Law Firm shall use, at its own expense, its own facilities and
personnel for all services required hereunder. Any extraordinary expenses, fees or
costs above and beyond the expected day to day operations, may be billed
separately and must be approved as extraordinary expenses by the County;

5.8 The Law Firm shall devote its best professional efforts to the
business of the County. The Law Firm shall accept no representation contrary to
the interest of the County. In the event of a conflict of interest on any matter
assigned to the Firm, the Firm shall immediately disclose to the County the conflict
and assist the County in a resolution and/or appointment of a separate Law Firm
to handle the matter in conflict;

5.9 The Law Firm shall take such action as is deemed appropriate under
the circumstances and will keep the County, through its County
Administrator/Controller, County Administration and/or Board of Commissioners,
informed of the progress of such actions as are taken on the County's behalf. Any
expression by the Law Firm concerning the outcome of any matter represents the

Law Firm's opinion but is not a warranty or guarantee as to that outcome;

Page 5 of 7



510 The Léw Firm, in the performance of the duties required of it
hereunder, shall not discriminate against any employee or application for
employment, with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions or privileges of
employment, or any matter directly or indirectly related to employment, because of
race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, nor because of age or sex, except
where based on a bona fide occupational qualification.

6. The County understands that Michigan Rule of Professional Code 1.16
allows The Kelly Firm, PLC to withdraw from representation of the County if any of the
following occur:

6.1 The client insists upon pursuing a course of action the attorney
considers repugnant or imprudent;

6.2 The client fails to pay the fees, expenses, and/or costs required
under this Contract after reasonable warning that non-payment will result in
withdrawal;

6.3 Continued representation will result in an unreasonable financial
burden on the Law Firm.

7. The County and Law Firm agree that this Fee Agreement is for a period of
three (3) years from the date hereof (as outlined in Section 5.5). The parties agree that
modification of this Agreement can occur at any time upon both parties agreeing thereto.
This Agreement shall automatically renew for consecutive one (1) year periods unless or
until either party provides sixty (60) days’ written notice of intent to terminate. Upon sixty
(60) days’ notice of either party’s intent to terminate, the Law Firm agrees to cooperate

with the County in the professional and orderly transfer of work to the new legal services

Page 6 of 7



provider and the County agrees to pay all outstanding bills for services provided prior to
termination.

8. The Firm does hereby agree to abide by and follow all known policies and
practices regularly applicable to providing legal services to a municipal agency such as
the County; including providing any and all documents, evidence of required insurance or
other representations as requested and needed to provide legal services to the County.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County of Lapeer and The Kelly Firm, PLC through
their designated and authorized representatives, have set their hands and seals on the

date hereto above written.

ACCEPTED BY:

COUNTY OF LAPEER THE KELLY FIRM, PLC
By: Tom Kohiman By: Daniel J. Kelly
Its: Chairman, Lapeer County Board of Its: President

Commissioners

Page 7 of 7



LAPEER COUNTY
"GRANT" REQUEST FOR ACTION

DATE: 11/20/2023

REQUEST FOR ACTION -Grant Application

X REQUEST FOR ACTION -Grant Acceptance

TO: Lapeer County Board of Commissioners

FROM: Office of Emergency Management

SUMMARY OF REQUEST/INFORMATION: Sign the associated Grant Agreement that aligns with the acceptance of the FY21
Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) reimbursement for the renewal for the Everbridge NIXLE Alerting services period
ending March 20, 2024 at no cost to the county. Reimbursement acceptance approved 9/28/2023 in action 258-2023.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: YES NO
CFDA # 97.067 Is there a Continuation Requirement? - X
% FEDERAL 100 Is there an Interest Earned Requirement? X
% STATE 0 Can Interest be charged to the Grant? . X
LOCAL MATCH Cash: 0 Is Cost Allocation Allowable? - X
In-Kind: 0 (If not Explain Why)
Revenue Account Line #: _ 258__ -_ 424 - 506_._000__
CONTACT PERSON(S):___ Sarah Whaley

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Everbridge NIXLE is the mobile alerting service that Lapeer County implemented in 2020.
This reimbursement was approved 9/28/2023 in board action 258-2023. The Region realized there was no associated grant
agreement. This action authorizes the signing of the grant

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION: 258-2023; All associated grant agreement documents

DRAFT MOTION: Authorize the Board Chairman to sign the Grant Agreement for the FY 21 HSGP funds that were approved

and accepted to reimburse the County for the renewal of the NIXLE Alerting services through March of 2024.

ATTACHMENTS Yes : X No:




DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT #2
2021 HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT PROGRAM
SUBRECIPIENT FUNDING AGREEMENT

THIS SUBRECIPIENT FUNDING AGREEMENT, entered into this day of
, 20 , by and between the DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT #2, a public

health department serving four counties within Michigan’s Region 3 and based at 630 Progress Street,

West Branch, Michigan, hereinafter referred to as “DHD2”, acting as Fiduciary Agent for the 2021
Homeland Security Grant Program (Fiduciary) and (Political

Subdivision), with a fiscal year end date of (month) ___ (day).

WITNESSETH, THAT:

WHERAS, pursuant to the Urban Cooperation Act of 1967, 1967PA 7, mcl 124.501, ef,seq., the
Fiduciary and the Political Subdivision enter into the agreement for the purpose of passing through 2021
Homeland Security Grant Program (grant program) funds to the Political Subdivision, delineating the
relationship and responsibilities among the Fiduciary, the Political Subdivision and the Region 3
Homeland Security Planning Board regarding the grant program; and addressing use of grant program
funds, including but not limited to, the purchase, use and tracking of equipment purchased with grant
program funds, purchase or reimbursement of services with grant program funds, and/or reimbursement
for certain salaries and/or overtime with grant program funds.

WHEREAS, DHD?2 was elected and appointed Fiduciary for the 2021 Homeland Security Grant
Program by the Region 3 Homeland Security Board on October 4, 2021; and District Health Department
#2 accepted the position of Fiduciary and as a result entered into the 2021 Homeland Security Grant
Program with the Michigan State Police Emergency Management and Homeland Security Division
(MSP-EMHSD) and became the Subgrantee for the grant program effective September 1, 2021. In
consideration of the mutual promises, obligations, representations, and assurances in the agreement, the
parties agree to the following:

1. Definitions: The following words and expressions used throughout this agreement, whether used in
singular or plural, or possessive or non-possessive, shall be defined, read, and interpreted as follows:
1.1. Agreement means the terms and conditions of this agreement, the exhibits attached hereto and

any other mutually agreed to written and executed modification, amendment, or addendum.

1.2. Claim means any alleged loss, claim, complaint, demand for relief or damages, cause of action,
proceeding judgement deficiency, liability, penalty, fine, litigation, costs and/or expenses,
including but not limited to, reimbursement for attorney fees, witness fees, court costs,
investigation expenses, litigation expenses, and amounts paid in settlement, which are imposed
on, incurred by or asserted against the Fiduciary or Political Subdivision, as defined herein,

whether such claim is brought in law or equity, tort, contract, or otherwise.

2021 Homeland Security Grant Program Funding Agreement Page 1



1.3.  Fiduciary means District Health Department #2, a multi-county public health department,
including, but not limited to, its Board of Health, any and all of its departments, divisions,
elected and appointed officials, directors, authorities, committees, employees, agents,
subcontractors, attorneys, and/or any such person’s successors.

1.4.  Party/Parties means the Fiduciary and the Political Subdivision may also be referred to
individually as party or jointly as parties.

1.5.  Political Subdivision means a Michigan Municipal Corporation including but not limited to, its

Council, Board, and any and all of its departments, divisions, elected and appointed officials,
directors, board members, council members, commissioners, authorities, committees,
employees, agents, subcontractors, attorneys, and/or any such person’s successors.

1.6. Region means the area comprised of Alcona, Arenac, Bay, Genesee, Gladwin, Huron, Iosco,
Lapeer, Midland, Ogemaw, Oscoda, Saginaw, Sanilac, and Tuscola Counties. The Region
mirrors the existing State Emergency Management 3 District and the Office of the Public
Health Preparedness Bio-Defense Network region.

1.7. Region 3 Homeland Security Planning Board (Region 3 Planning Board) means the

Regional Homeland Security Planning Board for Region 3, as created by the Michigan
Homeland Protection Board, and is comprised of the Counties from the Region.

1.8. 2021 Homeland Security Grant Program (grant program) means the grant program
described and explained in Exhibit B which began September 1, 2021 and ends May 31, 2024.

The grant program is a primary funding mechanism, administered by the United States

Department of Homeland Security (DHS) and plays an important role in the implementation of
the National Preparedness System (NHS) by supporting the building, sustainment, and delivery
of core capabilities essential to achieving the National Preparedness Goal (NPG) of a secure
and resilient nation. CFDA #: 97.067 and Federal Award ID #: EMW-2021-SS-00011-SO01.

2. Agreement Exhibits - The exhibits listed below, and their properly promulgated amendments are

incorporated and are part of this agreement.

2.1. Exhibit A: Region 3 Homeland Security Planning Board minutes from October 4, 2021, re:
approval of the 2021 Homeland Security Grant Program Fiduciary

2.2.  Exhibit B: 2021 Homeland Security Grant Program agreement between the Fiduciary and the
Michigan State Police Emergency Management and Homeland Security Division (MSP-
EMHSD)

2.3. Exhibit C: FY 2021 HSGP Agreement Articles Applicable to Subrecipients

2.4. Exhibit D: FY 2021 HSGP Equipment Ownership Agreement

2021 Homeland Security Grant Program Funding Agreement Page 2



3. Fiduciary Responsibilities

3.1.

3.2.

3.3,

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7

The Fiduciary will comply with all requirements set forth in the grant program agreement
between the Fiduciary and MSP-EMHSD.

The Fiduciary shall comply with all requirements set forth in the 2021 Homeland Security
Grant Program guidance.

The Fiduciary shall submit all required project forms to MSP-EMHSD for review and approval
which the Political Subdivision has submitted to the Fiduciary and been approved by the
Region 3 Planning Board.

The Fiduciary shall reimburse the Political Subdivision for the equipment, services and/or
personnel costs as set forth in the forms as supplied and required by MSP-EMHSD and the
applicable reimbursement forms reviewed and approved by MSP-EMHSD. The funds shall
only be released by the Fiduciary after the applicable reimbursement forms, required by MSP-
EMHSD and the Fiduciary are properly executed by the parties.

The Fiduciary shall create and maintain an inventory of all equipment purchased with grant

program funds in accordance with 2 CFR, Part 200.313 located at https://www.ecfr.gov

The Fiduciary shall notify the Political Subdivision at the end of the Political Subdivision’s
fiscal year of the dollar amount of grant program funds released to the Political Subdivision for
that fiscal year.

The Fiduciary shall file this agreement pursuant to law and provide executed copies of this

agreement to the Region 3 Planning Board Secretary and the Political Subdivision.

4. Political Subdivision Responsibilities

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

The Political Subdivision shall prepare all required forms for the use of grant program funds
and shall submit such forms to the Region 3 Planning Board. Upon approval by the Region 3
Planning Board, the Fiduciary will forward the required forms to MSP-EMSHD for review and
approval.

The Political Subdivision shall make all purchases in accordance with applicable federal, state,
and local purchasing policies.

The Political Subdivision shall use the equipment purchased with grant program funds and all
grant program funds in accordance with the guidance provided in the 2021 Homeland Security
Grant Notice of Funding Opportunity. The Political Subdivision shall be solely responsible for

the equipment, including but not limited to the following:

4.3.1. Operation of the equipment;
4.3.2. Maintenance and repair of the equipment;

4.3.3. Replacement and repair of equipment, which is willfully or negligently lost, stolen,

damaged, or destroyed;

2021 Homeland Security Grant Program Funding Agreement Page 3



4.3.4. Investigate, fully document, and make part of the official Grant Program records any loss,

damage, or theft of equipment;

4.3.5. Insurance, license, or title for the equipment, if required by law or if the Political

Subdivision deems appropriate in its discretion;

4.3.6. Training for use of the equipment, if training is not included with the purchase of the

equipment;

4.3.7. Liability for all Claims arising out of the Political Subdivision’s use of the equipment.

4.4,

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

4.9.

4.10.

The Political Subdivision shall keep the Fiduciary informed of the location of the equipment
purchased with grant program funds regardless of who purchased the equipment. If the
equipment by its nature is mobile, the Political Subdivision must provide a general location or
“home base” where the equipment can be found. If the location of the equipment changes, the
Political Subdivision shall provide the new location to the Fiduciary immediately. The
information required by this Section shall be provided to the Fiduciary upon receipt of the
equipment by the Political Subdivision through the completion of Exhibit D, Equipment
Ownership Agreement.

The Political Subdivision shall list the dollar amount provided by the Fiduciary pursuant to
Section 3.6 on the Political Subdivision’s Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
Except for equipment that is disposable or expendable, the Political Subdivision shall inform
the Fiduciary if it plans to dispose of the equipment and work with the Fiduciary regarding any
issues with disposal of the equipment.

The Political Subdivision shall be solely responsible for all costs, fines, and fees associated
with the use and misuse of the equipment, including but not limited to, costs for replacing the
equipment or costs, fines, or fees associated with an ineligible use determination by auditors.
The Political Subdivision shall make the equipment available to the Fiduciary, MSP-EMHSD
and Federal Auditors upon request.

The Political Subdivision shall comply with National Incident Management System (NIMS)
requirements to be eligible to receive federal preparedness funds.

The Political Subdivision shall comply with the applicable financial and administrative
requirements set forth in the current edition of 2 CFR, Part 200, including but not limited to the

following provisions:

4.10.1. Account for receipts and expenditures; maintain adequate financial records and refund

expenditures disallowed by Federal or State audit.

4.10.2. Retain all financial records, statistical records, supporting documentation and other

pertinent materials for at least three (3) years after the grant is closed by the awarding federal

agency for purposes of federal and/or state examination and audit.

2021 Homeland Security Grant Program Funding Agreement Page 4



4.10.3. Equipment records shall be maintained by the Political Subdivision until three (3) years
after the equipment has been disposed.

4.10.4. Non-federal organizations which expend $750,000 or more in federal funds during their
current fiscal year are required to have an audit performed in accordance with the Single
Audit Act of 1984, as amended, and 2 CFR, Part 200.

4.11. The Political Subdivision shall integrate individuals with disabilities into emergency planning
in compliance with Executive Order 13347 and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

4.12. Environmental and Historic Preservation Compliance: The federal government is required to
consider the potential impacts to the human and natural environment of projects proposed for
federal funding. The Environment and Historical Preservation (EHP) program engages in a
review process to ensure that federally funded activities comply with various federal laws. The
goal of these compliance requirements is to protect our nation’s water, air, coastal, wildlife,
agricultural and low-income and minority populations. The Political Subdivision shall not
undertake any project having the potential to impact EHP resources without prior approval.
Any activities that have been initiated without the necessary EHP review and approval will
result in a non-compliance finding and will not be eligible for federal funding.

4.13. The Political Subdivision shall comply with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S/C. 3141 et seq) for
grant funded construction projects. The Political Subdivision must ensure that contractors or
subcontractors for construction projects pay workers employed directly at the worksite no less
than the prevailing minimum wage and fringe benefits paid on projects of a similar character.
Additional information, including Department of Labor wage determinations is located at:

http://www.dol.gov/compliance/laws/comp.dbra.htm

4.14. Upon request, the Political Subdivision will supply to the Fiduciary any information required to
meet federally mandated reporting requirements and DHS program specific reporting
requirements.

4.15. The Political Subdivision must acknowledge and agree to comply with applicable provisions
governing DHS access to records, accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff. The
Political Subdivision also agrees to require any subrecipients, contractors, successors,
transferees, and assignees to acknowledge and agree to comply with these same provisions.
Detailed information can be found in the DHS Standard Administrative Terms and Conditions

located at https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fy15-dhs-standard-terms-and conditions ,

specifically in the DHS Specific Acknowledgements and Assurances on page 1.
5. Region 3 Planning Board Responsibilities: The parties agree and acknowledge that the Region 3

Planning Board shall have the following responsibilities:
5.1. Undertake studies and make recommendations on matters of emergency management and
homeland security to Political Subdivisions in the Region;

2021 Homeland Security Grant Program Funding Agreement Page 5



5.2. Hold public meetings, subject to the Michigan Open Meetings Act;

5.3. Perform such other acts or functions as it may deem necessary or appropriate to fulfill the duties
and obligations imposed by Federal and State Homeland Security Program requirements;

5.4. Establish subcommittees to carry out its work;

5.5. Advocate for, monitor and actively engage in the implementation of the Regional Homeland
Security Strategy;

5.6. Ensure that all grant projects are aligned to the appropriate FY 2021 HSGP investment and the
appropriate core capability from the National Preparedness Goal. The Region 3 Homeland
Security Planning Board should consider the benefits to Region 3 prior to approving projects for
funding.

5.7. Ensure the Regional Fiduciary is fully apprised of all projects approved by the Region 3
Homeland Security Planning Board.

6. Duration of Interlocal Acreement -

6.1. The agreement and any amendments hereto shall be effective when executed by both parties with
resolutions passed by the governing bodies of each party and shall end three (3) years from the
date the grant program is closed or when terminated and/or cancelled pursuant to Section 8. The
approval and terms of the agreement and any amendments hereto shall be entered in the official
minutes of the governing bodies of each Party.

7. Liability/Assurances

7.1. Each Party shall be responsible for any claim made against that party by a third party, and for the
acts of its employees or agents arising under or related to this agreement.

7.2. In any claim that may arise under or related to this agreement, each party shall seek its own legal
representation and bear the costs associated with such representation, including attorney fees.

7.3. Except as provided herein, neither party shall have any right under any legal principle to be
indemnified by the other party or any of its employees or agents in connection with any claim.

7.4. To the extent allowed by law, DHD2 shall hold harmless the Political Subdivision for any claims
arising as a result of DHD2’s performance of, or failure to perform, any of its obligations under
this Agreement with the Political Subdivision or the FY 2021 Homeland Security Grant
Agreement with the Michigan State Police.

7.5. To the extent allowed by law, the Political Subdivision shall hold harmless DHD?2 for any claims
arising as a result of the Political Subdivision’s performance of, or failure to perform, any of its
obligations under this Agreement with DHD2.

7.6. Nothing herein shall constitute a waiver of either party’s rights with regard to governmental

immunity.

2021 Homeland Security Grant Program Funding Agreement Page 6



10.

11.

12.

13.

7.1.

7.8.

7.9.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this agreement, the Political Subdivision shall be solely
responsible for all costs, fines, and fees associated with the use and misuse of grant program
funds that it receives or the use or misuse of the equipment, including but not limited to, costs for
replacing the equipment or costs, fines or fees associated with an ineligible determination by the
auditors.

The parties have taken all actions and secured all approvals necessary to authorize and complete
this Agreement. The persons signing this Agreement on behalf of each party have legal authority
to sign this Agreement and bind the parties to the terms and conditions contained herein.

Each party shall comply with all federal, state and local ordinances, regulations, administrative
rules, laws and requirements applicable to its activities performed under this Agreement,
including but not limited to, the Homeland Security Grant Program Agreement, attached as

Exhibit B, and the 2021 Homeland Security Grant Program Notice of Funding Opportunity.

Termination and/or Cancellation of Agreement: Either party may terminate and/or cancel the

Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ notice to the other Party. The effective date of termination and/or

cancellation shall be clearly stated in the notice. If this Agreement is terminated and/or cancelled, the

Transfer of Ownership Agreements executed prior to the date of termination and/or cancellation, shall

remain valid and govern the parties’ duties and obligations regarding equipment transferred to the

Political Subdivision and the parties shall execute Transfer of Ownership Agreements for all

equipment ordered by the Fiduciary prior to the date of termination and /or cancellation.

No Third Party Beneficiaries: Except as provided for the benefit of the Parties, this Agreement does

not and is not intended to create any obligation, duty, promise, contractual right or benefit, right to
indemnification, right to subrogation, and/or any other right in favor of any other person or entity.

Discrimination: The Parties shall not discriminate against their employees, agents, applicants for

employment, or another person or entities with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions, and

privileges of employment or any matter directly or indirectly related to employment in violation of

any federal, state, or local law.

Permits and Licenses: Each Party shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining, throughout the

term of this Agreement, all licenses, permits, certificates, and governmental authorizations necessary

to carry out its obligations and duties pursuant to this Agreement.

Reservation of Rights: The Agreement does not, and is not intended to waive, impair, divest,

delegate, or contravene any constitutional, statutory, and/or legal right, privilege, power, obligation,

duty, or immunity of the Parties.

Delegation/Subcontract/Assignment: Neither party shall delegate, subcontract and/or assign any

obligations or rights under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party.

2021 Homeland Security Grant Program Funding Agreement Page 7



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

No Implied Waiver: Absent a written waiver, no act, failure, or delay by a Party to pursue or enforce

any rights or remedies under this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of those rights with regard to
any existing or subsequent breach of this Agreement. No waiver of any term, condition, or provision
in this Agreement, whether by conduct or otherwise, in one or more instances, shall be deemed or
construed as a continuing waiver of any term, condition, or provision of this Agreement. No waiver
by either Party shall subsequently affect its right to require strict performance of this Agreement.
Severability: If a court of competent jurisdiction finds a term, or condition of this agreement to be
illegal or invalid, then the term, or condition shall be deemed severed from this Agreement. All other
terms, conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force.
Captions: The section and subsection numbers, captions, and any index to such sections and
subsections contained in this Agreement are intended for the convenience of the reader and are not
intended to have any substantive meaning. The numbers, captions and indexes shall not be interpreted
to be considered as part of this Agreement. Any use of the singular or plural number, any reference to
the male, female or neuter genders, and any possessive or non-possessive use in this Agreement shall
be deemed the appropriate plurality, gender or possession as the context requires.
Notices: Notices given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally delivered,
sent by express delivery service, certified mail, or first-class U.S. mail postage prepaid and addressed
to the person listed below. Notice will be deemed given on the date when one of the following first
occur: (1) the date of actual receipt; (2) the next business day when notice is sent express delivery
service or personal delivery; or (3) three days after mailing first class or certified U.S. mail.
17.1. If notice is sent to the Fiduciary, it shall be addressed and sent to: District Health Department
#2, Finance Department, 630 Progress St., West Branch, MI 48661

17.2. If notice is sent to the Political Subdivision, it shall be sent to:

17.3. Either Party may change the address and/or individual to which notice is sent by notifying the
other Party in writing of the change.

Governing Law: This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted, and enforced by the laws of the
State of Michigan.

Agreement Modifications or Amendments: Any modifications, amendments, recession, waivers, or

releases to this Agreement must be in writing and executed by both Parties. .

Entire Agreement: This agreement represents the entire agreement and understanding between the

parties. The language of this agreement shall be construed as a whole according to its fair meaning,

and not construed strictly for or against any party.

2021 Homeland Security Grant Program Funding Agreement Page 8



IN WITNESS WHEREOF:

District Health Department #2:

EXECUTED: DATE:

PRINTED NAME and TITLE:

Political Subdivision:

EXECUTED: DATE:

PRINTED NAME and TITLE:

Region 3 Homeland Security Planning Board:

excuten IR d—; /M..,QL\, oare: [ ~20-2022

PRINTED NAME and TITLE: Randy Miller, Chair R3HSPB

2021 Homeland Security Grant Program Funding Agreement Page 9



"Exhibit A"

Michigan 3™ District Regional
Homeland Security Planning Board
October 4, 2021
Meeting Minutes

Meeting called to order by Region 3 Homeland Security Planning Board Chairman Randy Miller on
Monday, October 4, 2021 at 1:31 P.M. Meeting was held at the Bay-Arenac ISD Career Center in Bay City,
MI.

Roll Call:

Scott Rice (Alcona), Michael Bowers (Arenac, Ogemaw & Oscoda), Jeff Wilson (Genesee), Bob North
(Gladwin), Randy Miller (Huron), Ralph Boudreau (Iosco), Jenifier Boyer (Midland), Mark Przybylski
(Saginaw), Steve Anderson (Tuscola)

Voting Members Absent:

Tori Rhoads (Alcona), James Mosciski (Arenac), Ryan Manz (Bay), Mike Cecchini (Bay), David Stamm
(Genesee), Mary Krohn (Huron), Eric Abbott (Iosco), Mary Piorunek (Lapeer), Denny Fitzpatrick (Lapeer),
Nicole Swanton (Midland), Kevin Grace (Oscoda), Cari Hillman (Saginaw), Todd Hillman (Sanilac), Rob
Kelly (Region 3 HCC)

Non-Voting Members Present:

Lt. Charles Barker (MSP-EMHSD, District 3 Coordinator), Dick Ripke (Midland CCP), Mark Laux
(MFD/RRT #31), Melissa Upper (Region 3 Planner)

Non-Voting Members Absent: N/A

Others Present:

Josh Mosher (MFD/RRT #31), John Jurek (MFD/IMT), Chuck Allen (Iosco Co SO), Scott Martzke (Michigan
Army National Guard)

Public Comments: N/A

Minutes of the August 2,2021 R3HSPB Meeting:

Motion 2021-0046 — Motion by Ralph Boudreau, seconded by Steve Anderson, to approve the minutes of
the August 2, 2021 R3IHSPB meeting as presented.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

FY 2018 HSGP Fiduciary Report:

The FY 18 grant projects need to be completed by the end of the year. At the last meeting the board set the
deadline of October 31* to reallocate any unspent funds. AAF approvals have been moving very slowly.



Motion 2021-0047 — Motion by Bob North, seconded by Jen Boyer, to approve the FY 18 Gladwin Co.
project of Portable Radios for all of Gladwin Co.’s remaining FY 18 allocation. Roll call vote.

Discussion: These are Motorola dual-band portable radios.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

Motion 2021-0048 — Motion by Mark Przybylski, seconded by Steve Anderson, to approve the FY 18
Saginaw Co. project of Level A Suits for all of Saginaw Co.’s remaining FY 18 allocation. Roll call vote.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

The primary FY 18 backup project is the Lapeer In-Car Cameras which is a sizeable project and should be
more than adequate to absorb any unspent funds.

FY 2019 HSGP Fiduciary Report:

The deadline of October 1% was set for all AAFs to be submitted and every county met the deadline.

Motion 2021-0049 — Motion by Scott Rice, seconded by Mark Przybylski, to approve the FY 19 Alcona
Co. project of Air Monitors for $21,910.45. Roll call vote.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

Motion 2021-0050 — Motion by Mike Bowers, seconded by Jen Boyer, to approve the FY 19 Arenac Co.
project of Jail VHF Radios for $16,180.44. Roll call vote.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

Motion 2021-0051 — Motion by Bob North, seconded by Jen Boyer, to approve the FY 19 Gladwin Co.
project of Portable Radios for $25,230.50. Roll call vote.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

Motion 2021-0052 — Motion by Ralph Boudreau, seconded by Steve Anderson, to approve the FY 19
Tosco Co. project of East Tawas FD Generator for $6,610.39. Roll call vote.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

Motion 2021-0053 — Motion by Steve Anderson, seconded by Mark Przybylski, to approve the FY 19
Lapeer Co. projects of Thermal Cameras for $5,460.00 and In-Car Cameras for $1,269.37. Roll call
vote.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.



Motion 2021-0054 — Motion by Jen Boyer, seconded by Steve Anderson, to approve the FY 19 Midland
Co. project of Mass Casualty Equipment for the remainder of Midland County’s FY 19 allocation. Roll
call vote.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

Motion 2021-0055 — Motion by Mike Bowers, seconded by Ralph Boudreau, to approve the FY 19
Ogemaw Co. project of EMS Pagers for $5,000.00. Roll call vote.

Discussion: These are dual-band pagers and are 50% locally funded.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

Motion 2021-0056 — Motion by Mark Przybylski, seconded by Jen Boyer, to approve the FY 19 Saginaw
Co. projects of Fire-EMS Active Assailant Task Force Equipment for $11,658.00; Training Mannequins
for $2,580.00; SFD Level A Suits for $2,800.00; SCSO Thermal Imaging Device for $2,950.00; EOC Staff
Computers for $2,525.00; and Trailer Mounted Light with Generator for all remaining allocation. Roll
call vote.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

Motion 2021-0057 — Motion by Ralph Boudreau, seconded by Steve Anderson, to approve the FY 19
Sanilac Co. projects of SO Radios for $25,230.50. Roll call vote.

Discussion: These are dual-band portable radios.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

There is $17,270.00 of unallocated FY 19 funds, as well as $6,000 allocated to ICS training that has not been
spoken for. ICS courses are available online through MI-TRAIN for approximately $300 each. However, the
issue is getting the AAF approved quickly prior to the course date. Courses are often available 12 months out.
Any ICS funds not claimed by the end of the year will be reallocated. There will likely be well over
$4,000 in unused mileage remaining at the end of this grant cycle. Third quarter mileage requests are due to
Melissa by the end of October. Conference funds in the amount of $2,000 have been set aside for each county.
The IAEM and Active Assailant Conferences are being held this month, with the GLHSC tentatively
scheduled for May. The Civil Unrest pre-conference session of the Active Assailant Conference was deemed
unallowable for HSGP reimbursement.

Backup projects need to be lined up to utilize these funds. Be thinking about purchases that could be quickly
completed, such as increasing the quantity of an existing project. The following projects were added to the FY
19 backup list: Midland Mass Casualty Equipment for $10,000.00 and Tuscola County TIC for $513.00.
Melissa encouraged the board to be thinking about additional backup projects. Send any ideas to her to be
prioritized at a later meeting.

John Jurek is the new team manager of the IMT. The team is getting back up and running and is in need of
some funding assistance.



Motion 2021-0058 — Motion by Jen Boyer, seconded by Mark Przybylski, to approve the FY 19 IMT
project of Laptop, Printer, & Case for $2,000.00 from the backup funds. Roll call vote.

Discussion: John is going to work with the City of Midland to fund this project.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

The team has been struggling to get members into ICS 3035, as spots fill up quickly. Hosting a class will cost
over $25,000 and require 24 attendees, which they do not have. Sending individuals to class would be most
practical. The team is looking to send 4-6 team members to the class. This is an essential, basic class for IMT
members and about half of the team members have not taken this training. MSP only offers this course in
Lansing and the next class is anticipated to be offered next spring. Lt. Barker said he would look into reserving
5-6 spots in this class for the IMT.

Motion 2021-0059 — Motion by Jen Boyer, seconded by Mark Przybylski, to approve the FY 19 IMT
project of ICS 305 Training for $10,000.00 from the unallocated funds. Roll call vote.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

Motion 2021-0059 — Motion by Jen Boyer, seconded by Mark Przybylski, to approve the FY 19 IMT
project of ICS 305 Training for $10,000.00 from the backup funds. Roll call vote.

Discussion: The AAF cannot be submitted for this project until dates for the class are known.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

The Aux Comm Committee wanted to request a repeater. Unfortunately, Mike Bowers and Melissa were
inadvertently not sent the information on the last meeting and, thus, neither attended. The tower is in Tuscola
County, but the Bay Amateur Radio Group owns the tower. They want to put a repeater on the tower which is
1000 feet high. The cost estimate for this project is roughly $10,000. The chairman of the group was supposed
to reach out to Melissa with details but has failed to do so. This request will be tabled until more information
is known.

FY 2020 HSGP Fiduciary Report:

The FY 20 grant ends May 31, 2023. There are three required project categories for this grant which include
Cybersecurity, Emerging Threats, and Soft Targets. Each category must be a minimum of $42,012. The
Cybersecurity is only for assessments. Midland County has requested $10,000 of these funds. Lapeer County
has requested a little over $12,000, but this would not be for assessments and will need to wait for the FY 21
grant. The RRT is purchasing enhanced detection equipment to fulfill the Emerging Threats project. The Soft
Targets project must be election related and we have been approved to purchase portable radios for election
security to fulfill this project. Lapeer County has requested two APX6000 radios for approximately $11,000
under this project. Steve Anderson noted that if we go with APX4000 radios, we can purchase 14, one for each
county, for a total cost of approximately $45,500 to include mic fees. These radios cannot be for everyday use
and should be on the 800 system to be able to communicate with the State. However, there may be some
counties that are not interested in participating in this project.



Requests are needed for the two required projects of election securing radios and cybersecurity assessments.
The deadline date of April 1% was set for these requests.

Motion 2021-0060 — Motion by Mike Bowers, seconded by Mark Przybylski, to approve the FY 20
Oscoda Co. projects of AED for Non-Transport Ambulance for $2,000.00 and EOC Laptops for
$4,000.00. Roll call vote.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

Motion 2021-0061 — Motion by Ralph Boudreau, seconded by Steve Anderson, to approve the FY 20
Iosco Co. project of East Tawas FD Generator for remaining cost of this project. Roll call vote.

Discussion: The cost of this project will be split with the FY 19 and 20 grants.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

Several agencies still have not completed their FY 20 subrecipient agreement with the City of Midland. This
document is required from any agency seeking reimbursement of funds under the FY 20 grant.

FY 2021 HSGP Fiduciary Report:

The FY 21 required projects can still be changed through the middle of December. Currently, these projects
include the following:

e Cybersecurity - $60,182 — Assessments and enhancements

e Emerging Threats - $40,122 — Enhanced equipment for the RRT — Qty 2 FLIR FIDO X4 explosives
detectors and supporting equipment

o Soft Targets — $40,122 — Portable LED scene lighting and digital warning signs. Barricades would also
fulfill the soft targets requirement, but the project description would need to be modified to include
them.

e Intelligence & Information Sharing - $40,122 — Training through MIOC or DHS
e Domestic Violent Extremism - $60,182 — Training through MIOC or DHS

The FY 22 required project requests will likely be due sometime this winter. Be thinking ahead to project
ideas.

Melissa thanked Mark Przybylski and Steve Anderson for all their efforts in the search for a fiduciary. We had
several promising candidates, and some had to be eliminated due to not being allowable as our fiduciary, such
as private entities like hospitals and community foundations. Public agencies that serve multiple counties seem
to be most agreeable to FEMA.



Motion 2021-0062 — Motion by Jen Boyer, seconded by Mark Przybylski, to approve District #2 Health
Department as the FY 21 HSGP Fiduciary.

Discussion: This health department is based in West Branch but serves Alcona, Iosco, Ogemaw, and Oscoda
Counties.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

Motion 2021-0063 — Motion by Jen Boyer, seconded by Steve Anderson, to approve the FY 20 HSGP
CSAP Contract between Melissa Upper and the City of Midland.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

Critical Infrastructure Scoring Update:

The deadline for Sections 1 and 2 of the CIKR scoring assessments is February 1, 2022. Section 3 is due
February 1, 2023. Some of the counties are utilizing planners to help with this task. A replacement has been
hired for Peter Hoffman’s role as MIOC’s critical infrastructure specialist, but he is still available to assist and
answer questions.

Addresses are required for all entries on the CIKR scoring spreadsheet, not just coordinates. Use a location
close to the middle of the road or end of the bridge for their addresses. List windmill farms, not individual
windmills and an approximate address for the farm.

Committee Reports:

HCC — Rob Kelly was absent, and no report was provided.

RRT — Mark Laux reported that the team currently has 43 members, which is split with hazmat and tech
rescue. The team is working to build up to 48 members by the end of year. Four members are part of

Michigan’s Task Force 1 response team. Two of these members are currently deployed to respond to Hurricane
Ida.

The team is part of Michigan’s validation process in which they help to validate other teams in the state. Mark
is one of the evaluators.

The team was asked to respond to a sewer treatment facility hazardous materials situation in Flat Rock. The
team offered up their services for a 3-day response over Labor Day weekend, but the team was not needed.

The hazardous materials group has been meeting monthly with MSP either virtually or in person.

In September, the team did a training on Exterior Structural Collapse. They spent two days addressing building
collapse considerations. Later this week the team is going to be working with arborists on how to help people
stuck in tree stands or arborists stuck in trees. In November, the team will be training in the use of aerial trucks
as an aid in rope rescue situations.

IMT — John Jurek reported that he became the new team leader for the Region 3 IMT earlier this year. He took
over for Rob Glenn, who is still very active with the team. Chuck Cribley is John’s assistant and Brandon
Rossi is the training officer. The team currently consists of approximately twelve members and has been
struggling with credentialing to determine what level of team they are. The State is starting to roll out
credentialing for Type 3 and Type 4 teams. The team has an initial goal of becoming a Type 4 team and to



eventually become a Type 3 team and a long-term goal of becoming an all-hazards strike team. The team plans
to use the same standards as Task Force 1 for consistency. The team has been meeting regularly and has just
started going back to in-person meetings. The team will need funding assistance for a regular training budget
to meet credentialing requirements.

The team is also working on improving their dispatch policies and procedures to make them more streamlined
and to make assistance requests easier. They have been using Bay Alerts for activation requests, but it is
essentially a phone tree that could take hours to coordinate a response team. The new system the team is
looking into is lamResponding, which is a computerized system that goes through Midland County 911 and
sends out a message to all members. One of the lead team members will contact the requesting agency for
more details on the response.

Currently, there is no billing mechanism set up for the IMT to respond. The individual local response agencies
to which the team members belong are absorbing the response costs. The team is working on how to bill for a
response and handle cost recovery, especially if they would like to respond outside of the region in the future.

Jen Boyer shared that Midland County requested assistance from the Oakland County IMT through MEMAC.
This team assisted with EOC logistics for eight days with a staff of 10-11 people at a cost of $500/person/day.
Through public assistance, Midland County was able to get reimbursed for these costs, but all documentation

has to be up to par.

Currently, the team can only assist with an incident, but cannot take over with an incident until they have been
credentialed. They are working with RRT hazmat team to coordinate with them on large events to develop
scene safety plans.

The team sent four members to assist with the Brittle Fire incident. They declined a request from private entity
related to the Ford Motor Company.

The team intends to visit each county soon with a meet-n-greet to introduce team and their capabilities.

Randy Miller asked the team to take their time with the development of their policies and procedures to get
them right. The R3HSPB will want to review these policies and procedures before they are finalized.

Motion 2021-0064 — Motion by Jen Boyer, seconded by Steve Anderson, to approve John Jurek as the
IMT representative to the RSHSPB.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

I

Motion 2021-0065 — Motion by Ralph Boudreau, seconded by Bob North, to approve Mark Przybylski
as the IMT’s conduit to the RIHSPB with Jen Boyer as the backup.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

LETPA -The next meeting will tentatively be December 9th. Melissa is going to try to coordinate with the
M.A.G.L.O.C.L.E.N. rep to attend this meeting.
CCP — The committee met prior to this meeting today. Bob North is the new chairman.

Aux Comm — Mike Bowers reported that the committee met in September, but neither he, nor Melissa,
attended due to poor communication. The Oscoda County’s Aux Com repeater has had an issue but should
only need to be tuned and does not need to be replaced.



MSP/EMHSD - Lt. Barker will coordinate a brief presentation on using the survey tool to access the self-
reporting information for GIS.

Scott Martzke of the Michigan Army National Guard introduced himself. Northern Exposure 22 Rising Waters
has been shifted to the U.P. Cloverland Electric, ATC, Trans Canada, the tribes, Soo Locks, Mackinac Island,
Enbridge, Sawyer Airport, Plains LPG, and quarries will all be involved, as will hazmat, wildland fire, ESF
#13. The initial planning meetings were held virtually on October 6-8. The goal of the National Guard is to
provide a full capability checklist for the QRF and RRF. The event will be held on April 11-15.

Unfinished Business: N/A

New Business: N/A

Other/Public Comments/Announcements:

Ralph Boudreau shared that new dock in Tawas City is now open. It has eight free day slips.

Bob North reported that Blue Ridge Power is putting in a 100-acre solar farm west of Gladwin. The project
will start in March. There will be about 300 people working at the site and approximately 1000 semi-trucks
worth of equipment coming in. There will be no lithium batteries, as the power is going directly onto the grid.

Staff Report:

Personnel certifications for the next six months are due to Melissa by November 1*. This would only be for
the fiduciary staff, Melissa, and any grant-funded planning staff.

The annual cybersecurity assessments that each county’s IT departments need to complete are due by February
28" but ideally are due December 31,

Adjournment:

Motion 2021-0066 — Motion by Mark Przybylski, seconded by Scott Rice, to adjourn the meeting.

Ayes: Rice, Bowers, Wilson, North, Miller, Boudreau, Boyer, Bowers, Bowers, Przybylski, Anderson
Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

Meeting adjourned at 3:11 P.M.

Respectfully Submitted,
Melissa Upper



) . ) ) e
”- Region 3 Homeland Security Planning Board -
Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP)
Aicona County ’ City of Midland, FY 2018-20 Fiduciary
Scott Rice /
Tori Rhoads

Randy Miller, Chair

Jenifier Boyer, Vice Chair
Steven Anderson, Secretary

Arenac County "?C‘\ 12 \ O'G 9 Melissa Upper, Planner/Fiduciary Agent

Michael Bowers

James Mosciski

Michigan's Region 3

Bay County Homeland Security Planning Board (R3HSPB)
Ryan Manz 4155 Monitor Rd. (Bay-Arenac ISD Career Center)

Mike Cecchini Bay City, Michigan 48706

Genesee County

David Stamm EVENT. KB HS P6 DATE: ID/‘I /Z(

Jeff Wilson
NAME ) JURISDICTION

Gladwin County
Bob North 1. / / KZQ M / /<///“9/Q,@L {5
Huron County
Randy Miller 2. //j: 4&—,/—- /fﬂ"ﬂ/&; e 5&(447/ ;(pf/

Mary Krohn

losco County 3. %M %M Ao A2 Loy )( v Sevi )P,

Eric Abbott
Ralph Boudreau

Lapeer County 4. mq‘/z ¥ @&7 B Y 5x¢ ‘5!’*-(;9—5'» A

Mary Piorunek
Denny Fitzpatrick

W

5.5y thozsee TS COLA
Midland County :
Jenifier Boyer / Z‘/Z‘Q/ —
Nicole Swanton WLl L ASP - EMHED

Ogemaw County 7 \BC.:\("\C' CILae £330 Gt N &S

Michael Bowers

g Rond, Phlle Torion

( \

Michael Bowers
Kevin Grace

Saginaw County 9. \j«U'] 'Qa/ b‘—’i Ar— 7\/\‘ C(L,alfl &

Mark Przybylski

) .
Cari Hillman i, jdl\y\ jw*e,ﬁ @3 I,ﬂ/’r

Sanilac County
Todd Hillman . ﬁyé /\j 0027}7( qu‘»)

Tuscola County

Steve Anderson 1 % Z/’ g& Yo o %{M //éﬁ/’/zz&z %c‘é‘ﬂé
Region 3 HPN e
/ ) %&Qﬁ/ﬁ?ch e e /Kz::z\}/{

Rob Kelly
A L/\K M =
District 3 Coordinator .
Lt. Charles Bark : iy
t. Charles Barker 15,(30 Sé\\ MQBLL(— Mf}b

13.

Region 3 CCP
Richard Ripke

14.




Michael Bowers
James Mosciski

Bay County
Ryan Manz

Mike Cecchini

Genesee County
David Stamm

Jeff Wilson

Gladwin County
Bob North

Huron County
Randy Miller

Mary Krohn

losco County
Eric Abbott

Ralph Boudreau

Lapeer County
Mary Piorunek
Denny Fitzpatrick

Midland Countv
Jerifier Boyer
Nicole Swanton

Ogemaw County
Michael Bowers

Oscoda County
Michael Bowers

Kevin Grace

Saginaw County
Mark Przybyiski
Cari Hillman

Sanilac County
Todd Hillman

Tuscola County
Steve Anderson

Region 3 HPN
Rob Kelly

Region 3 CCP
Richard Ripke

District 3 Coordinator

Lt. Charles Barker

o GF ity -

L-;'J»‘ i ?‘ ‘;‘-.-

ol M
G -“;::‘xk;?"‘/
R : . . G

»=57. Region 3 Homeland Security Planning Board
Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP)
Alcona County City of Midland, FY 2018-20 Fiduciary
TSﬁogthcg Randy Miller, Chair
TR Jenifier Boyer, Vice Chair
Steven Anderson, Secretary
Arenac County

‘QQSQ 20{\ 2_ Melissa Upper, Planner/Fiduciary Agent
Michigan's Region 3
Homeland Security Planning Board (R3HSPB)
4155 Monitor Rd. (Bay-Arenac ISD Career Center)
Bay City, Michigan 48706

(2089

EVENT:

DATE: '0[4(2(

JURISDICTION

NAMZ /
. S flerENS Feses Lo

o Scott Martzke (did not sign in) Michigan Army National Guard

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.




"Exhibit B"

Michigan State Police

Emergency Management and
Homeland Security Division

Grant Agreement

FEDERAL AWARD IDENTIFICATION

SUBRECIPIENT NAME GRANT NAME CFDA NUMBER

District Health Department #2 Fiscal Year 2021 Homeland 97.067
Security Grant Program

SUBRECIPIENT IRS/VENDOR NUMBER FEDERAL AWARD IDENTIFICATION NUMBER FEDERAL AWARD DATE
(FAIN)

38-1911267 9/10/2021

SUBRECIPIENT DUNS NUMBER SUBAWARD FROM TO
PERFORMANCE
PERIOD

607878691 09/01/2021 05/31/2024

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT .

Funding Total

N/A Federal Funds Obligated by $802,421
this Action

INDIRECT COST RATE Total Federal Funds Obligated | $802,421
to Subrecipient

None on file Total Amount of Federal $802,421
Award Committed

FEDERAL AWARD PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP)

DETAILS

Funding requirements are found on page 2 (Section Ill) of the grant agreement.

FEDERAL AWARDING AGENCY PASS-THROUGH ENTITY (RECIPIENT) NAME

FEMA-GPD 400 C Street SW 3rd floor Michigan State Police,

Washington, DC 20472-3645

Emergency Management and Homeland
Security Division

P.O. Box 30634

Lansing, MI 48909




State of Michigan
Fiscal Year 2021 Homeland Security Grant Program
Grant Agreement

September 1, 2021 to May 31, 2024

CFDA Number: 97.067
Grant Number:

This Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) grant agreement is hereby
entered into between the Michigan Department of State Police, Emergency Management and Homeland
Security Division (MSP/EMHSD) (hereinafter called the Recipient), and the

DisTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT #2
(hereinafter called the Subrecipient)

. Purpose

The FY 2021 HSGP supports state, local, and tribal efforts to prevent terrorism and other catastrophic
events, and prepares the Nation for the threats and hazards that pose the greatest risk to the security of
the United States. The FY 2021 HSGP provides funding to implement investments that enhance
terrorism preparedness and serve to build, sustain, and deliver the 32 core capabilities essential to
achieving the National Preparedness Goal of a secure and resilient Nation.

The purpose of this grant agreement is to provide federal pass-through funds to the Region 3 Homeland
Security Planning Board (hereinafter called the regional board) through the Subrecipient, which has been
voted and approved to act as the Fiduciary Agent on behalf of the regional board for the FY 2021 HSGP

The HSGP is comprised of three grant programs, one of which is covered by this grant agreement:

State Homeland Security Program (SHSP): The SHSP provides funds for state, local, and tribal
preparedness activities that address high-priority preparedness gaps across all core capabilities where a
nexus to terrorism exists. The SHSP supports implementation of the National Preparedness System
(NPS) by providing funds to address planning, organization, equipment, training, and exercise needs to
prevent, prepare for, protect against, and respond to acts of terrorism. Many capabilities which support
terrorism preparedness simultaneously support preparedness for other hazards. Subrecipients must
describe this dual-use quality for any activities implemented under this program that are not explicitly
focused on terrorism preparedness.

Allowable activities must comply with the FY 2021 Homeland Security Grant Program Notice of Funding
Opportunity and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Preparedness Grants Manual,
both located at http://www.fema.gov/homeland-security-arant-proaram, align with Michigan's FY 2021
SHSP investments, support capability targets established in the Threat and Hazard |dentification and Risk
Assessment (THIRA) and gaps identified in the Stakeholder Preparedness Review (SPR), and align to
projects specifically approved by the Recipient.

1. Statutory Authority

Funding for the FY 2021 HSGP is authorized by Section 2002 of the Homeland Security Act of 2002, as
amended (Public Law 107-296), (6 U.S.C. § 603).



FY 2021 HSGP
District Health Department #2 (Region 3«APPLICANT» Fiduciary)
Page 2 of 10

Appropriation authority is provided by the Department of Homeland Security Appropriations Act, 2021,
(Public Law No. 116-260).

The Subrecipient agrees to comply with all FY 2021 HSGP program requirements in accordance with the
FY 2021 Homeland Security Grant Program Notice of Funding Opportunity and the FEMA Preparedness
Grants Manual located at http://imwww.fema.gov/homeland-security-grant-program, the U.S. Department of
Homeland Security (DHS) Standard Administrative Terms and Conditions located at
https://www.dhs.qov/publication/fy15-dhs-standard-terms-and-conditions, the FY 2021 HSGP Agreement
Articles Applicable to Subrecipients included with the grant agreement packet, and the FY 2021 HSGP
Michigan Supplemental Guidance provided electronically by Michigan State Police, Emergency
Management and Homeland Security Division (MSP/EMHSD).

The Subrecipient shall also comply with the most recent version of:

1. 2 CFR, Part 200 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards located at
http://www.ecfr.qov, select Title 2.

2. FEMA Directive 108-1: Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation Responsibilities and
Program Requirements

ll. Award Amount and Restrictions

A. The District Health Department #2, acting as the Fiduciary Agent on behalf of the Region 3
Board, is awarded $802,421 under the FY 2021 HSGP. The grant agreement shall be
administered based on the Subrecipient’s policies and procedures, provided they conform to state
and federal rules, laws, and/or regulations.

B. The FY 2021 HSGP covers eligible costs from September 1, 2021, to May 31, 2024.

C. The HSGP funds may not be used to support the hiring of any personnel for the purposes of
fulfilling traditional public health and/or safety duties or to supplant traditional public health and
safety positions and/or responsibilities.

D. Atleast $200,606 of award funds must be dedicated towards Law Enforcement Terrorism
Prevention Activities (LETPA). Activities eligible for use of LETPA-focused funds are outlined in
the National Prevention Framework (and where capabilities are shared with the protection
mission area, the National Protection Framework) located at http://www.fema.gov/national-
planning-frameworks. The Subrecipient must meet its minimum LETPA funding requirement for
the FY 2021 HSGP.

E. The FY 2021 HSGP includes the following five national priority area funding requirements:
1) Enhancing cybersecurity;
2) Enhancing the protection of soft targets/crowded places;
3) Enhancing information and intelligence sharing and cooperation with federal agencies,
including DHS;
4) Combating domestic violent extremism;
5) Addressing emerging threats (e.g., transnational criminal organizations, weapons of
mass destruction [WMDs)], unmanned aerial systems [UASs], etc.).

At least $60,182 award funds must be dedicated towards enhancing cybersecurity, at least
$40,122 must be dedicated towards the protection of soft targets/crowded places, at least
$40,122 must be dedicated towards enhancing information and intelligence sharing and
cooperation with federal agencies, at least $60,182 must be dedicated towards combating
domestic violent extremism and at least $40,122 must be dedicated towards addressing



FY 2021 HSGP
District Health Department #2 (Region 3«APPLICANT» Fiduciary)
Page 3 of 10

emerging threats. All national priority area projects must be pre-approved by FEMA. Additional
information on the FY 2021 HSGP national priority areas can be found in the FEMA
Preparedness Grants Manual located at http://www.fema.qov/homeland-security-grant-proaram.

F. A maximum of $401,210 of award funds may be used for personnel and personnel-related
activities as directed by the Personnel Reimbursement for Intelligence Cooperation and
Enhancement (PRICE) of Homeland Security Act of 2008 (Public Law 110-412). In general, the
use of SHSP funding to pay for staff and/or contractor regular time or overtime/backfill is
considered a personnel cost. Additional information on personnel costs is provided in the FEMA
Preparedness Grants Manual located at https://www.fema.gov/media-
library/assets/documents/178291.

G. A maximum of 5% of awarded funds, $40,121, may be retained and used solely for management
and administration (M&A) purposes associated with the HSGP award. The M&A allowable costs
are defined in the FY 2021 Homeland Security Grant Program Notice of Funding Opportunity, and
the FEMA Preparedness Grants Manual located at http://www.fema.qov/homeland-security-grant-

program.

H. The Subrecipient may only fund projects which directly support one of the FY 2021 HSGP grant
investments. To assist Subrecipients, the Recipient has developed the FY 2021 HSGP Michigan
Supplemental Guidance to provide additional information on developing projects consistent with
the National Preparedness Goal, state and regional homeland security priorities, and Michigan's
FY 2021 SHSP investment justification.

I. Except as otherwise specifically set forth in this grant agreement, the Recipient (not the
Subrecipient) shall make the final determination on how funds awarded under this grant
agreement are allocated and/or spent, from projects reviewed and approved by the regional
board and submitted to the Recipient by the Subrecipient.

J.  For any activities involving construction, demolition, ground disturbance, or installations of
equipment, an Environmental and Historic Preservation (EHP) review must be completed.

Any work started before receiving EHP approval will result in a non-compliance finding
and not be eligible for federal funding.

K. A portion of FY 2021 SHSP funds should be allocated toward sustainment of the Regional
Response Team Network (RRTN) and search and rescue capabilities, where applicable. The
Subrecipient should ensure that support is provided through appropriate planning, equipment,
training, and exercise activities.

L. Inthe event that DHS determines changes are necessary to the award document after an award
has been made, including but not limited to changes to the period of performance or terms and
conditions, Subrecipients will be notified of the changes in writing. Once notification has been
made, any subsequent request for funds will indicate Subrecipient acceptance of the changes to
the award.

IV. Responsibilities of the Subrecipient

A. Grant funds must supplement, not supplant, state or local funds. Federal funds must be
used to supplement existing funds, not replace (supplant) funds that have been appropriated for
the same purpose. Potential supplanting will be carefully reviewed in subsequent monitoring
reviews and audits. Subrecipients may be required to supply documentation certifying that a
reduction in non-federal resources occurred for reasons other than the receipt or expected receipt
of federal funds.



FY 2021 HSGP
District Health Department #2 (Region 3«APPLICANT» Fiduciary)
Page 4 of 10

B. Refer to the FY 2021 Homeland Security Grant Program Notice of Funding Opportunity and the
FEMA Preparedness Grants Manual located at http://www.fema.gov/homeland-security-grant-
program for a detailed list of allowable costs and program activities under this grant.

C. The subrecipient shall not use FY 2021 HSGP funds to generate program income.

D. In addition to this grant agreement, the Subrecipient shall complete, sign, and submit to the
Recipient the following documents, which are incorporated by reference into this grant

agreement:

1. Subrecipient Risk Assessment Certification

2. Standard Assurances

3. Certifications Regarding Lobbying; Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters;
and Drug-Free Workplace Requirements

4. Audit Certification (EMD-053)

5. Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification (W-9)

6. Other documents that may be required by federal or state officials

The Subrecipient agrees to act as the Fiduciary Agent on behalf of the regional board for the FY

2021 HSGP. The Subrecipient agrees to comply with all applicable federal and state regulations,
including, but not limited to, the following:

1.

Make all purchases in accordance with federal, and local purchasing policies. The Federal
Procurement Procedure citations are found at 2 CFR 200.318-326, and Appendix II; and are
located at http://www.ecir.qov.

The Subrecipient is required to submit reports to the Recipient on the status of all projects
and funding. Reporting must follow the format and schedule specified by the Recipient.

Submit regional board-approved projects to the Recipient in the format specified by the
Recipient prior to starting a project. Individual solution area costs must also be submitted to
the Recipient for alignment and allowability evaluation prior to starting a project. All grant
expenditures must meet DHS and Recipient grant guidelines, must directly support one of the
FY 2021 HSGP Investments, and must support at least one core capability from the National
Preparedness Goal. Projects must be coordinated regionally and align to appropriate state
and regional homeland security priorities. Any project that proposes a change in scope of
work during the grant performance period must be resubmitted to the Recipient for
evaluation. Any funds spent on a project prior to receiving Recipient approval may be
ineligible for reimbursement.

Create and maintain an inventory of all equipment purchases in accordance with 2 CFR, Part
200.313 located at http://www.ecfr.qov. Every calendar year, the Subrecipient must prepare
an equipment inventory list and conduct a physical inventory that is reconciled to that list by
June 30. The Subrecipient must supply a copy of this inventory to the Michigan State Police,
Emergency Management and Homeland Security Division, Audit Unit via email at
loaders@michigan.govlor by mail to P.O. Box 30634, Lansing, Michigan 48909. The physical
inventory must be submitted to the Audit Unit by July 31 of the same year the inventory is
completed. An Equipment Tracking template is available to assist the Subrecipient in
meeting these requirements. The template can be found on the MSP/EMHSD Grant
Programs webpage at www.michigan.gov/emhsd or by emailing EMD HSGP @michigan.qov.

If the Subrecipient purchases equipment for a local governmental unit with FY 2021 HSGP
funds, the Subrecipient shall make the equipment available for pick-up by other local
governmental units per equipment assignments by the regional board. This process needs to
include legal transfer of the equipment to the designated local governmental units. At



10.

1.

12.

FY 2021 HSGP
District Health Department #2 (Region 3«APPLICANT» Fiduciary)
Page 5 of 10

minimum, the Subrecipient should prepare documents, which, when signed, will indicate
other designated local governmental units accept full legal and financial responsibility for the
pieces of equipment.

The Subrecipient agrees to prepare and submit reimbursement requests to the Recipient in a
timely manner. Reimbursement requests must include all required supporting
documentation, including proof of payment. All reimbursement requests must be submitted
to the Recipient no later than 30 days after the end of the performance period identified in this
grant agreement. Any remaining balance of funds by that date will be reallocated.

Current forms and instructions are located at http://www.michigan.qov/emhsd, or can be
requested by sending an email to EMD HSGP@michigan.gov.

Comply with applicable financial and administrative requirements set forth in the current
edition of 2 C.F.R., Part 200, including, but not limited to, the following provisions:

a. Account for receipts and expenditures, maintain adequate financial records, and refund
expenditures disallowed by federal or state audit.

b. Retain all financial records, statistical records, supporting documents, and other pertinent
materials for at least three years after the grant is closed by the awarding federal agency
for purposes of federal and/or state examination and audit.

¢. Retain all financial records, statistical records, supporting documents, and other pertinent
materials for equipment purchases for three years after their disposition.

d. Non-federal organizations which expend $750,000 or more in federal funds from all
federal sources during their current fiscal year are required to have an audit performed in
accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984, as amended, and the requirements of the
Government and Accountability Office’s (GAO) Government Auditing Standards and
Subpart F of 2 C.F.R., Part 200.

Comply with National Incident Management System (NIMS) requirements to be eligible to
receive federal preparedness funds. The NIMS information is available at

http://www.fema. gov/national-incident-management-system. More information on complying
with NIMS is available from the State NIMS Coordinator at www.michigan.gov/emhsd under
Response and Recovery.

Subrecipients must carry out their programs and activities in a manner that respects and
ensures the protection of civil rights for protected populations. These populations include but
are not limited to individuals with disabilities and others with access and functional needs,
individuals with limited English proficiency, and other diverse racial and ethnic populations, in
accordance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964. and Executive Order 13347.

Environmental and Historic Preservation Compliance. The federal government is
required to consider the effects on the environment and/or historic properties of any federally
funded activities and programs, including grant-funded projects. The EHP process ensures
that federally funded activities comply with federal EHP regulations, laws, and executive
orders as applicable. The goal of these compliance requirements is to protect the nation's
environmental, historic, and cultural resources. The Subrecipient shall not undertake any
project having the potential to impact EHP resources without prior approval. Any work started
before receiving EHP approval will result in a non-compliance finding and not be eligible for
federal funding.

Comply with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141 ef seq.) for grant-funded construction
projects. The Subrecipient must ensure that contractors or subcontractors for construction
projects pay workers employed directly at the work-site no less than the prevailing wages and



FY 2021 HSGP
District Health Department #2 (Region 3«APPLICANT» Fiduciary)
Page 6 of 10

fringe benefits paid on projects of a similar character. Davis-Bacon wage determinations are
published on the Wage Determinations Online website at https://www.sam.gov.

13. Comply with all reporting requirements, including special reporting, data collection, and
evaluation requirements, as prescribed by law or program guidance.

14. Maintain a valid Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number during the performance
period of this grant.

15. The Subrecipient must acknowledge and agree to comply with applicable provisions
governing DHS access to records, accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff.
The Subrecipient also agrees to require any subrecipients, contractors, successors,
transferees, and assignees to acknowledge and agree to comply with these same provisions.
Detailed information on record access provisions can be found in the DHS Standard
Administrative Terms and Conditions located at https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fy15-dhs-
standard-terms-and-conditions, specifically in the DHS Specific Acknowledgements and
Assurances on page 1.

V. Responsibilities of the Recipient
The Recipient, in accordance with the general purposes and objectives of this grant agreement, will;

A. Administer the grant in accordance with all applicable federal and state regulations and guidelines
and submit required reports to the awarding federal agency.

B. Provide direction and technical assistance to the Subrecipient.

C. Provide to the Subrecipient any special report forms and reporting formats (templates) required
for administration of the program.

D. Reimburse the Subrecipient, in accordance with this grant agreement, based on appropriate
documentation submitted by the Subrecipient.

E. Atits discretion, independently, or in conjunction with the federal awarding agency, conduct
random on-site reviews of the Subrecipient(s).

VI. Reporting Procedures

The Subrecipient is required to submit reports to the Recipient on the status of all projects and funding.
Reporting must follow the format and schedule specified by the Recipient. Current forms and instructions
are located at http://www.michigan.gov/emhsd, or can be requested by sending an email to

EMD HSGP@michigan.qov.

Reporting on funding status is mandated by the federal government. Failure by the Subrecipient to fulfill
reporting requirements, in compliance with federal grant rules, shall result in the suspension of grant
funding until reports are received and may jeopardize future federal funding.

Vil. Payment Procedures

The Subrecipient agrees to prepare and submit the Reimbursement Cover Sheet (EMD-054) with all
required supporting documentation attached, including proof of payment. The Subrecipient will submit
one Reimbursement Cover Sheet and related forms for each grant project, solution area, allocation type,
and individual exercise. Reimbursement Cover Sheets must be filled out completely. Instructions are
provided with each of the reimbursement forms. The Reimbursement Cover Sheet and other
reimbursement forms can be found on the MSP/EMHSD website located at



FY 2021 HSGP
District Health Department #2 (Region 3«APPLICANT» Fiduciary)
Page 7 of 10

http://www.michigan.gov/iemhsd. The Subrecipient will not be reimbursed for funds until all required
signed documents and reimbursement documentation are received. All reimbursement requests must be
submitted to the Recipient no later than 30 days after the end of the performance period identified in this
grant agreement. Funds which are not encumbered or do not have pending reimbursement requests by
that date will be reallocated.

Drawdown of Funds in Advance. Up to 90 days prior to expenditure, the Subrecipient may request
funds for purchases of $10,000 or more. All of the following requirements must be met when requesting
advanced funds:

A. The Subrecipient must submit advance requests with a copy of approved purchase orders and a

copy of approved Alignment and Allowability Forms.

The Subrecipient must place advanced funds in an interest-bearing account.

The Subrecipient may retain interest up to $500 per year (2 CFR, Part 200.305) for administrative

expenses incurred for all federal grants combined.

The Subrecipient must notify the Recipient quarterly, in writing, of any interest earned over $500.

The Subrecipient must remit any interest earned over $500 promptly, and at least quarterly, to:

Michigan State Police, Emergency Management and Homeland Security Division, Grants and

Financial Management Section, P.O. Box 30634, Lansing, Michigan, 48909.

The Subrecipient must liquidate each advance by the date specified by the Recipient (usually

within 90 days).

G. The Subrecipient must ensure all invoices and proof of payment documents are dated after the
date the advance was issued by the Recipient.

mo Ow

o

VIll. Employment Matters

The Subrecipient shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Title VIII of the
Civil Rights Act of 1968, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (Equal Opportunity in Education
Act); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975; Titles |, Il and Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990,
the Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, 1976 PA 453, as amended, MCL 37.2101 et seq.; the Persons with
Disabilities Civil Rights Act, 1976 PA 220, as amended, MCL 37.1101 ef seq., and all other federal, state
and local fair employment practices and equal opportunity laws and covenants. The Subrecipient shall
not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment, to be employed in the performance of
this grant agreement, with respect to his or her hire, tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of
employment; or any matter directly or indirectly related to employment because of his or her race, religion,
color, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, marital status, limited English proficiency, or handicap that
is unrelated to the individual's ability to perform the duties of a particular job or position. The Subrecipient
agrees to include in every subcontract entered into for the performance of this grant agreement this
covenant not to discriminate in employment. A breach of this covenant is a material breach of the grant
agreement.

The Subrecipient shall ensure that no subcontractor, manufacturer, or supplier of the Subrecipient for
projects related to this grant agreement appears on the Federal Excluded Parties List System located at
https://www.sam.gov.

IX. Limitation of Liability

The Recipient and the Subrecipient to this grant agreement agree that each must seek its own legal
representative and bear its own costs, including judgments, in any litigation that may arise from
performance of this contract. It is specifically understood and agreed that neither party will indemnify the
other party in such litigation.

This is not to be construed as a waiver of governmental immunity for either party.



FY 2021 HSGP
District Health Department #2 (Region 3«APPLICANT» Fiduciary)
Page 8 of 10

X. Third Parties

This grant agreement is not intended to make any person or entity, not a party to this grant agreement, a
third party beneficiary hereof or to confer on a third party any rights or obligations enforceable in their
favor.

Xl. Grant Agreement Period

This grant agreement is in full force and effect from September 1, 2021, to May 31, 2024. No costs
eligible under this grant agreement shall be incurred before the starting date of this grant agreement,
except with prior written approval. This grant agreement may be terminated by either party by giving 30
days written notice to the other party stating reasons for termination and the effective date, or upon the
failure of either party to carry out the terms of the grant agreement. Upon any such termination, the
Subrecipient agrees to return to the Recipient any funds not authorized for use, and the Recipient shall
have no further obligation to reimburse the Subrecipient. Upon termination of grant agreement, the
Subrecipient shall submit documentation, in a format specified by the Recipient, to formally end its status
as Fiduciary Agent.

Xll. Entire Grant Agreement

This grant agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Michigan and supersedes all prior
agreements, documents, and representations between the Recipient and the Subrecipient, whether
expressed, implied, or oral. This grant agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties
and may not be amended except by written instrument executed by both parties prior to the grant end
date. No party to this grant agreement may assign this grant agreement or any of his/her/its rights,
interest, or obligations hereunder without the prior consent of the other party. The Subrecipient agrees to
inform the Recipient in writing immediately of any proposed changes of dates, budget, or services
indicated in this grant agreement, as well as changes of address or personnel affecting this grant
agreement. Changes in dates, budget, or services are subject to prior written approval of the Recipient.
If any provision of this grant agreement shall be deemed void or unenforceable, the remainder of the
grant agreement shall remain valid.

The Recipient may suspend or terminate grant funding to the Subrecipient, in whole or in part, or other
measures may be imposed for any of the following reasons:

A. Failure to expend funds in a timely manner consistent with the grant milestones, guidance, and
assurances.

Failure to comply with the requirements or statutory objectives of federal or state law.

Failure to follow grant agreement requirements or special conditions.

Proposal or implementation of substantial plan changes to the extent that, if originally submitted,
the project would not have been approved for funding.

Failure to submit required reports.

Filing of a false certification in the application or other report or document.

Failure to adequately manage, monitor or direct the grant funded activities of its subrecipients.

emm oow

Before taking action, the Recipient will provide the Subrecipient reasonable notice of intent to impose
corrective measures and will make every effort to resolve the problem informally.

Xlll. Business Integrity Clause

The Recipient may immediately cancel the grant without further liability to the Recipient or its employees if
the Subrecipient, an officer of the Subrecipient, or an owner of a 25% or greater share of the Subrecipient
is convicted of a criminal offense incident to the application for or performance of a state, public, or
private grant or subcontract; or convicted of a criminal offense, including, but not limited to any of the
following: embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, receiving stolen



FY 2021 HSGP
District Health Department #2 (Region 3«APPLICANT» Fiduciary)
Page 9 of 10

property, attempting to influence a public employee to breach the ethical conduct standards for State of
Michigan employees; convicted under state or federal antitrust statutes; or convicted of any other criminal
offense which, in the sole discretion of the Recipient, reflects on the Subrecipient's business integrity.

XIV. Freedom of Information Act (FOIA)

Much of the information submitted in the course of applying for funding under this program, or provided in
the course of grant management activities, may be considered law enforcement-sensitive or otherwise
critical to national security interests. This may include threat, risk, and needs assessment information;
and discussions of demographics, transportation, public works, and industrial and public health
infrastructures. Therefore, each Subrecipient agency Freedom of Information Officer will need to
determine what information is to be withheld on a case-by-case basis. The Subrecipient should be
familiar with the regulations governing Protected Critical Infrastructure Information (6 CFR, Part 29) and
Sensitive Security Information (49 CFR, Part 1520), as these designations may provide additional
protection to certain classes of homeland security information.



FY 2021 HSGP
District Health Department #2 (Region 3«APPLICANT» Fiduciary)

Page 10 of 10
XV. Official Certification

For the Subrecipient

The individual or officer signing this grant agreement certifies by his or her signature that he or she is
authorized to sign this grant agreement on behalf of the organization he or she represents. The
Subrecipient agrees to complete all requirements specified in this grant agreement.

Dicdeich ReaWW Diord st .k (0788 64j

Subrecipient Name v Subrecipient's DUNS Number

Ddﬂ\?e_ W\Br\.\w MPA > \CoA

Printed Name C ) Title

ig)-ﬂw M
Signature ’ O Date

For the Recibient (Michigan State Police. Emergency Management and Homeland Security

Division)

-2+ Q|

Commander, Emergency Management

Capt. Kevin Sweeney and Homeland Security Division
Printed Name Title

% 10/29/2021
Signature Date

For the Regional Board

The Regional Board Chair’s signature appears on this grant agreement as a certification that the Region
3 Homeland Security Planning Board has chosen the District Health Department #2 to act as the
Fiduciary Agent on behalf of the regional board for the FY 2021 HSGP.

r'Qﬂ l\.\l@‘,\/ ,V( | “Q/r/ Reagional Board Chair

Printed Name Title

AT ,
¢ M -2l

StgnAture Date




"Exhibit C"

Agreement Articles Applicable to Subrecipients
Fiscal Year 2021 Homeland Security Grant Program

Article | - Activities Conducted Abroad

Subrecipients must ensure that project activities carried on outside the United States are coordinated as
necessary with appropriate government authorities and that appropriate licenses, permits, or approvals are
obtained.

Article Il - Reporting of Matters Related to Subrecipient Integrity and Performance

If the total value of any currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and procurement contracts from all
federal awarding agencies exceeds $10,000,000 for any period of time during the period of performance of this
federal award, then the Subrecipients must comply with the requirements set forth in the government-wide Award
Term and Condition for Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters located at 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix XII,
the full text of which is incorporated here by reference in the award terms and conditions.

Atrticle Ill - Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA)

Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of the government-wide financial assistance award term which
implements Section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA), codified as amended at 22
U.S.C. section 7104. The award term is located at 2 C.F.R. section 175.15, the full text of which is incorporated
here by reference.

Article IV - Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging while Driving

Subrecipients are encouraged to adopt and enforce policies that ban text messaging while driving as described in
E.O. 13513, including conducting initiatives described in Section 3(a) of the Order when on official government
business or when performing any work for or on behalf of the federal government.

Article V - Debarment and Suspension

Subrecipients are subject to the non-procurement debarment and suspension regulations implementing Executive
Orders (E.O.) 12549 and 12689, which are at 2 C.F.R. Part 180 as adopted by DHS at 2 C.F.R. Part 3000. These
regulations restrict federal financial assistance awards, subawards, and contracts with certain parties that are
debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in federal assistance programs or
activities.

Article VI - Fly America Act of 1974

Subrecipients must comply with Preference for U.S. Flag Air Carriers (air carriers holding certificates under 49
U.S.C. section 41102) for international air transportation of people and property to the extent that such service is
available, in accordance with the International Air Transportation Fair Competitive Practices Act of 1974, 49
U.S.C. section 40118, and the interpretative guidelines issued by the Comptroller General of the United States in
the March 31, 1981, amendment to Comptroller General Decision B-138942.

Article VIl - Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990

Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of Titles |, Il, and Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act, Pub.
L. No. 101-336 (1990) (codified as amended at 42 U.S.C. sections 12101-12213), which prohibits Subrecipients
from discriminating on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation
systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities.

Article VIII - Duplication of Benefits

Any cost allocable to a particular federal financial assistance award provided for in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart E
may not be charged to other federal financial assistance awards to overcome fund deficiencies; to avoid
restrictions imposed by federal statutes, regulations, or federal financial assistance award terms and conditions;
or for other reasons. However, these prohibitions would not preclude Subrecipients from shifting costs that are
allowable under two or more awards in accordance with existing federal statutes, regulations, or the federal
financial assistance award terms and conditions.

Article IX - Copyright

Subrecipients must affix the applicable copyright notices of 17 U.S.C. sections 401 or 402 and an
acknowledgement of U.S. Government sponsorship (including the award number) to any work first produced
under federal financial assistance awards.

Article X - Civil Rights Act of 1968

Subrecipients must comply with Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, Pub. L. No. 90-284, as amended through
Pub. L. 113-4, which prohibits Subrecipients from discriminating in the sale, rental, financing, and advertising of
dwellings, or in the provision of services in connection therewith, on the basis of race, color, national origin,



religion, disability, familial status, and sex (see 42 U.S.C. section 3601 et seq.), as implemented by the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development at 24 C.F.R. Part 100. The prohibition on disability discrimination
includes the requirement that new multifamily housing with four or more dwelling units-i.e., the public and
common use areas and individual apartment units (all units in buildings with elevators and ground-floor units in
buildings without elevators)-be designed and constructed with certain accessible features. (See 24 C.F.R. Part
100, Subpart D.)

Article XI - Best Practices for Collection and Use of Personally Identifiable Information

Subrecipients who collect personally identifiable information (PIl) are required to have a publicly available privacy
policy that describes standards on the usage and maintenance of the PII they collect. DHS defines PIl as any
information that permits the identity of an individual to be directly or indirectly inferred, including any information
that is linked or linkable to that individual. Subrecipients-may also find the DHS Privacy Impact Assessments:
Privacy Guidance at http://www.dhs.qov/xlibrary/assets/ privacy/privacy_pia_guidance_june2010.pdf and Privacy
Template at https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/ privacy_pia_template 2017.pdf as useful
resources respectively.

Article XII - Limited English Proficiency (Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VI)

Subrecipients must comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, (42 U.S.C. section 2000d et seq.)
prohibition against discrimination on the basis of national origin, which requires that Subrecipients of federal
financial assistance take reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to persons with limited English
proficiency (LEP) to their programs and services. For additional assistance and information regarding language
access obligations, please refer to the DHS Recipient Guidance:

https://www.dhs.gov/guidance- published-help-department- supported-organizations-provide-meaningful-access-
people-limited and additional resources on http://www.lep.gov.

Article XIlII - Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990

In accordance with Section 6 of the Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990, 15 U.S.C. section 22253,
Subrecipients must ensure that all conference, meeting, convention, or training space funded in whole or in part
with federal funds complies with the fire prevention and control guidelines of the Federal Fire Prevention and
Control Act of 1974, (codified as amended at 15 U.S.C. section 2225.)

Article XIV - Disposition of Equipment Acquired Under the Federal Award

When original or replacement equipment acquired under this award by the Recipient or its sub-recipients is no
longer needed for the original project or program or for other activities currently or previously supported by
DHS/FEMA, you must request instructions from DHS/FEMA to make proper disposition of the equipment pursuant
to 2 C.F.R. Section 200.313.

Article XV - Patents and Intellectual Property Rights

Subrecipients are subject to the Bayh-Dole Act, 35 U.S.C. section 200 et seq, unless otherwise provided by law.
Subrecipients are subject to the specific requirements governing the development, reporting, and disposition of
rights to inventions and patents resulting from federal financial assistance awards located at 37 C.F.R. Part 401
and the standard patent rights clause located at 37 C.F.R. section 401.14.

Article XVI - DHS Specific Acknowledgements and Assurances

All recipients, subrecipients, successors, transferees, and assignees must acknowledge and agree to comply with
applicable provisions governing DHS access to records, accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff. 1.
Subrecipients must cooperate with any compliance reviews or compliance investigations conducted by DHS. 2.
Subrecipients must give DHS access to, and the right to examine and copy, records, accounts, and other
documents and sources of information related to the federal financial assistance award and permit access to
facilities, personnel, and other individuals and information as may be necessary, as required by DHS regulations
and other applicable laws or program guidance. 3. Subrecipients must submit timely, complete, and accurate
reports to the appropriate DHS officials and maintain appropriate backup documentation to support the reports. 4.
Subrecipients must comply with all other special reporting, data collection, and evaluation requirements, as
prescribed by law or detailed in program guidance.

Article XVII - Procurement of Recovered Materials

States, political subdivisions of states, and their contractors must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste
Disposal Act, Pub. L. No. 89-272 (1965), (codified as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act,
42 U.S.C. section 6962.) The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines
of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 C.F.R. Part 247 that contain the highest percentage of
recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition.

Article XVIIl - Terrorist Financing



Subrecipients must comply with E.O. 13224 and U.S. laws that prohibit transactions with, and the provisions of
resources and support to, individuals and organizations associated with terrorism. Subrecipients are legally
responsible to ensure compliance with the Order and laws.

Article XIX - Civil Rights Act of 1964 - Title VI

Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (codified as amended
at 42 U.S.C. section 2000d et seq.), which provides that no person in the United States will, on the grounds of
race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. DHS implementing regulations
for the Act are found at 6 C.F.R. Part 21 and 44 C.F.R. Part 7.

Article XX - Prior Approval for Modification of Approved Budget

Before making any change to the DHS/FEMA approved budget for this award, you must request prior written
approval from DHS/FEMA where required by 2 C.F.R. Section 200.308. DHS/FEMA is also utilizing its discretion
to impose an additional restriction under 2 C.F.R. Section 200.308(e) regarding the transfer of funds among direct
cost categories, programs, functions, or activities. Therefore, for awards with an approved budget where the
Federal share is greater than the simplified acquisition threshold (currently $250,000), you may not transfer funds
among direct cost categories, programs, functions, 'or activities without prior written approval from DHS/FEMA
where the cumulative amount of such transfers exceeds or is expected to exceed ten percent (10%) of the total
budget DHS/FEMA last approved. You must report any deviations from your DHS/FEMA approved budget in the
first Federal Financial Report (SF-425) you submit following any budget deviation, regardless of whether the
budget deviation requires prior written approval.

Article XXI - Acknowledgement of Federal Funding from DHS

Subrecipients must acknowledge their use of federal funding when issuing statements, press releases, requests
for proposal, bid invitations, and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with
federal funds.

Article XXII - Acceptance of Post Award Changes

In the event FEMA determines that changes are necessary to the award document after an award has been
made, including changes to period of performance or terms and conditions, Subrecipients will be notified of the
changes in writing. Once notification has been made, any subsequent request for funds will indicate Subrecipient
acceptance of the changes to the award.

Article XXIIl - Rehabilitation Act of 1973

Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Pub. L. No. 93-
112 (1973), (codified as amended at 29 U.S.C. section 794,) which provides that no otherwise qualified
handicapped individuals in the United States will, solely by reason of the handicap, be excluded from participation
in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal
financial assistance.

Article XXIV - False Claims Act and Program Fraud Civil Remedies

Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. sections 3729-3733, which
prohibits the submission of false or fraudulent claims for payment to the federal government. (See 31 U.S.C.
sections 3801-3812, which details the administrative remedies for false claims and statements made.)

Article XXV - Nondiscrimination in Matters Pertaining to Faith-Based Organizations

It is DHS policy to ensure the equal treatment of faith-based organizations in social service programs
administered or supported by DHS or its component agencies, enabling those organizations to participate in
providing important social services to beneficiaries. Subrecipients must comply with the equal treatment policies
and requirements contained in 6 C.F.R. Part 19 and other applicable statues, regulations, and guidance
governing the participations of faith-based organizations in individual DHS programs.

Article XXVI - Lobbying Prohibitions

Subrecipients must comply with 31 U.S.C. section 1352, which provides that none of the funds provided under a
federal financial assistance award may be expended by the Subrecipient to pay any person to influence, or
attempt to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with any federal action related to a federal
award or contract, including any extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification.

Article XXVII - Education Amendments of 1972 (Equal Opportunity in Education Act) - Title IX
Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, Pub. L. No.
92-318 (1972) (codified as amended at 20 U.S.C. section 1681 et seq.), which provide that no person in the
United States will, on the basis of sex, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be



subjected to discrimination under any educational program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. DHS
implementing regulations are codified at 6 C.F.R. Part 17 and 44 C.F.R. Part 19.

Article XXVIIl - Age Discrimination Act of 1975

Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Pub. L. No. 94-135
(1975) (codified as amended at Title 42, U.S. Code, section 6101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance.

Article XXIX - National Environmental Policy Act

Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA), Pub.
L. No. 91-190 (1970) (codified as amended at 42 U.S.C. section 4321 et seq.) and the Council on Environmental
Quality (CEQ) Regulations for Implementing the Procedural Provisions of NEPA, which require Subrecipients to
use all practicable means within their authority, and consistent with other essential considerations of national
policy, to create and maintain conditions under which people and nature can exist in productive harmony and fulfill
the social, economic, and other needs of present and future generations of Americans.

Article XXX - Assurances, Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, Representations and
Certifications

DHS financial assistance Subrecipients must complete either the Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Standard Form 424B Assurances - Non-Construction Programs, or OMB Standard Form 424D Assurances -
Construction Programs, as applicable. Certain assurances in these documents may not be applicable to your
program, and the DHS financial assistance office (DHS FAO) may require applicants to certify additional
assurances. Applicants are required to fill out the assurances applicable to their program as instructed by the
awarding agency. Subrecipients are required to follow the applicable provisions of the Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards located at Title 2, Code of Federal
Regulations (C.F.R.) Part 200, and adopted by DHS at 2 C.F.R. Part 3002.

Article XXXI - USA PATRIOT Act of 2001

Subrecipients must comply with requirements of Section 817 of the Uniting and Strengthening America by
Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (USA PATRIOT Act), Pub.
L. No. 107-56, which amends 18 U.S.C. sections 175-175c.

Article XXXII - Non-Supplanting Requirement

Subrecipients receiving federal financial assistance awards made under programs that prohibit supplanting by law
must ensure that federal funds do not replace (supplant) funds that have been budgeted for the same purpose
through non-federal sources.

Article XXXIII - Drug-Free Workplace Regulations

Subrecipients must comply with drug-free workplace requirements in Subpart B (or Subpart C, if the Subrecipient
is an individual) of 2 C.F.R. Part 3001, which adopts the Government-wide implementation (2 C.F.R. Part 182) of
Sec. 5152-5158 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (41 U.S.C. sections 8101-8106).

Article XXXIV - Universal Identifier and System of Award Management

Subrecipients are required to comply with the requirements set forth in the government-wide financial assistance
award term regarding the System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements located at 2
C.F.R. Part 25, Appendix A, the full text of which is incorporated here by reference.

Article XXXV - Energy Policy and Conservation Act

Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of the Energy Policy and Conservation Act, Pub. L. No. 94- 163
(1975) (codified as amended at 42 U.S.C. section 6201 et seq.), which contain policies relating to energy
efficiency that are defined in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with this Act.

Article XXXVI - Whistleblower Protection Act
Subrecipients must comply with the statutory requirements for whistleblower protections (if applicable) at 10
U.S.C section 2409, 41 U.S.C. section 4712, and 10 U.S.C. section 2324, 41 U.S.C. sections 4304 and 4310.

Article XXXVII - Federal Debt Status

All Subrecipients are required to be non-delinquent in their repayment of any federal debt. Examples of relevant
debt include delinquent payroll and other taxes, audit disallowances, and benefit overpayments. (See OMB
Circular A-129.)

Article XXXVIII - Use of DHS Seal, Logo and Flags



Subrecipients must-obtain permission from DHS FAO prior to using the DHS seal(s), logos, crests or
reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials, including use of the United States Coast Guard seal,
logo, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of Coast Guard officials.

Article XXXIX - Notice of Funding Opportunity Requirements

All the instructions, guidance, limitations, and other conditions set forth in the Notice of Funding Opportunity
(NOFO) for this program are incorporated here by reference in the award terms and conditions. All Subrecipients
must comply with any such requirements set forth in the program NOFO.

Article XL - SAFECOM

Subrecipients receiving federal financial assistance awards made under programs that provide emergency
communication equipment and its related activities must comply with the SAFECOM Guidance for Emergency
Communication Grants, including provisions on technical standards that ensure and enhance interoperable

communications.



Regular Board Meeting September 28, 2023 Page 2 of 10

257-2023

Motion by Haggadone, supported by Zender, to accept the 5-year Cooperative
Reimbursement Program Grant for Fiscal Year 2024-2028 (#CSFOC24-44001)
(CFDA#93.563) between the Michigan Department of Health and Human Services
(MDHHS) and Lapeer County Friend of the Court, as submitted; and further, to authorize
the County Controller/Administrator to electronically accept the grant and that a copy be
forwarded to the County Clerk to be entered into the official record as an exhibit. Motion
carried.

258-2023

Motion by Haggadone, supported by Zender, to authorize t
Everbridge NIXLE mobile alert system service through March;
to be reimbursed through Homeland Security Grant P
grant funding, at no additional cost to the County Gen

: enewal of the annual
)24, at a cost of $7,725.00,
] HSGP) (CFDA#97 067)

259-2023
Motion by Haggadone, supported by Zender,
Management to proceed with the purchase
Tower Light/Charger with batteries and fift
Supply, at a cost of $40,026.90, from line
reimbursed by the identified Fiscal Y
funds. Motion carried.

260-2023
Motion by Haggadone, su;
annual amount of $4,995:

e payment to OCV, in the
vld from line 207-350-810.070,

the official record as an exhibit. Motion carried.

263-2023

Motion by Hamilton, supported by Knisely, to accept the Fiscal Year 2024 Health
Department Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE)
Grant Agreement in the amount of $190,332.00, and to authorize the Health Department
Director to electronically sign the agreement and that a copy be forwarded to the County
Clerk to be entered into the official record as an exhibit. Motion carried.



5)

LAPEER COUNTY
"GRANT" REQUEST FOR ACTION

DATE: 12/11/2023
REQUEST FOR ACTION -Grant Application

X REQUEST FOR ACTION -Grant Acceptance

TO: Lapeer County Board of Commissioners

FROM: Animal Control

SUMMARY OF REQUEST/INFORMATION 2024 Animal Welfare Fund Grant (MDARD) Acceptance of
$6000.00 to be used towards Project A- Spay/Neuter of adoptable animals.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: YES NO
CFDA # Is there a Continuation Requirement? - X
% FEDERAL Is there an Interest Earned Requirement? - X
% STATE Can Interest be charged to the Grant? - X
LOCAL MATCH Cash: Is Cost Allocation Allowable? X
In-Kind: (If not Explain Why)

Revenue Account Line 225-432-813.000

CONTACT PERSON(S): Stephanie King
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: This is a grant that is applied for each year.

This year with the high influx of animals a spay/neuter grant was applied for to help ensure a healthy spayed/neutered animal
prior to adoption.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION: Grant letter of acceptance.

Draft Motion: Accept the 2024 Animal Welfare Fund Grant administered by the Michigan Department of
Agriculture and Rural Development(MDARD); and further, to authorize the County Controller/Administer
to electronically accept the grant and that a copy be forwarded to the County Clerk to be entered into
official record.

ATTACHMENTS Yes: X No:




STATE OF MICHIGAN
GRETCHEN WHITMER DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE DR TIM BORING
COVERNOR AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

December 5, 2023

Stephanie King

Lapeer County Animal Control
2396 W Genesee St

Lapeer, Ml 48446

SentVia Email: animal@lapeercounty.org
Dear Ms. King,

Thank you for applying for a 2024 Animal Welfare Fund Grant. The grant program is
administered by the Michigan Department of Agriculture and Rural Development
(MDARD). We received 65 applications requesting more than $600,000.

Your grant applications have been reviewed, and we are pleased to inform you that
you have been selected to receive a grant in the amount of $6,000 for Project A-
Spay/Neuter. The Animal Welfare Fund will be reimbursing your eligible expenses for
the February 1 to September 1, 2024 grant period. Funds will be distributed to
grantees in the form of reimbursements after receipts and other forms of proper
documentation have been submitted.

Please be on the lookout for a notification email to have your organization
electronically sign the 2024 grant agreement.

If you have any questions, please contact Kate Turner at 517-898-4427 or via email at
animalshelters@michigan.gov.

Respectfully,

Jom s

Tim Slawinski
Acting Division Director
Animal Industry Division

CONSTITUTION HALL < P.O. BOX 30017 ¢ LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909
www.michigan gov/mdard < 800-292-3939



LIST OF BOARD APPOINTMENTS BY EXPIRATION DATE

Revised 12/8/2023

Name | Board | Length of Term Expiration Date
Vacant needing to be filled

Vacant Senior Programs Advisory Board — District#7 2-year term December 31, 2022

Vacant Valley Area Agency on Aging (VAAA) Executive B{  Unexpired 2-year term December 31, 2023

Vacant Thumb Regional Community Corrections Advisory Board 2-year term March 1, 2023

Vacant Jury Board — Chief Judge Recommendation Unexpired 6-year term April 30, 2025

2023

Jerry Cooper Agricultural Preservation Board 3-year term December 31, 2023
William Ankley Agricultural Preservation Board 3-year term December 31, 2023
Chris Candela Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 3-year term December 31, 2023
Leanne Panduren Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 3-year term December 31, 2023
Craig Horton Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 3-year term December 31, 2023
Don Dube Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 3-year term December 31, 2023
Andrew Harrington Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 3-year term December 31, 2023
Steve Zott Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 3-year term December 31, 2023
Rick Burrough Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 3-year term December 31, 2023
Andrew Harrington Economic Development Corp. 6-year term December 31, 2023
Jessica Marco Economic Development Corp. 6-year term December 31, 2023
Jeremy Howe - Law Enforcement Emergency Planning Committee/Emergency Management Advisory O 2-year term December 31, 2023
Mike Vogt -Fire Emergency Planning Committee/Emergency Management Advisory Q 2-year term December 31, 2023
Scott Stone -Fire Emergency Planning Committee/Emergency Management Advisory g 2-year term December 31, 2023
Kathy Haskins —First Aide/Health 2-year term December 31, 2023
Marilyn Szost Alternate Emergency Planning Committee/Emergency Management Advisory G

Kimberly Goldorf - MFR/First 2-year term December 31, 2023
Aide/Health Emergency Planning Committee/Emergency Management Advisory G

Phil Kaatz - Agriculture Emergency Planning Committee/Emergency Management Advisory G 2-year term December 31, 2023
Jeremy Compau - EMs Emergency Planning Committee/Emergency Management Advisory Q 2-year term December 31, 2023
Ted Sadler— Elected/Local Official Emergency Planning Committee/Emergency Management Advisory 2-year term December 31, 2023
Michael Boskee — Elected/Local 2-year term December 31, 2023
Official Emergency Planning Committee/Emergency Management Advisory G

Willa Talley Valley Area Agency on Aging (VAAA) Executive Bq 2-year term December 31, 2023
Vacant Valley Area Agency on Aging (VAAA) Executive B¢ 2-year term December 31, 2023




DATE: December 5, 2023
_XX_REQUEST FOR ACTION
_____FOR YOUR INFORMATION
____ REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
FROM: Moses Sanzo, County Controller/Administrator

KKK KKK KKK KKK KKK KKK KKK KK K K 3K 3K ok 3k 3K 3K 3K 3K 3K ok ok ok ok ok ok ok Sk Sk sk ok sk sk sk sk skosk sk sk sk skosk skoskoskokskskskosksksk sk sk sk ok

SUMMARY OF REQUEST / INFORMATION: Request authorization to pay the
December invoice from Shifman Fournier for labor related legal services.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

CONTACT PERSON(S): Moses Sanzo and/or Doreen Clark

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: Legal Summary for Invoice #15474

DRAFT MOTION:

Motion by , supported by , to authorize
payment to Shifman Fournier, PLC, in the amount of $1,740.00 for labor
related legal services rendered through November 30, 2023, to be paid from
line item #101-239-801.020.

ATTACHMENTS YES__ X NO




Howard L. Shifman

Brandon Fournier

Robert Nyovich - Of Counsel Shlfmaﬂ
fournier

31600 Telegraph Road, Suite100
Bingham Farms, Ml 48025

Phone (248) 594-8700
Fax (248) 594-7080

shifrnanfournier.com

VIA EMAIL ONLY

PRIVILEGED ATTORNEY-CLIENT COMMUNICATION

December 1, 2023

Moses Sanzo, County Administrator/Controller
Lapeer County

255 Clay Street

Lapeer, M| 48446

Re: Lapeer County/Invoice for Services

Mr. Sanzo:

Attached please find our invoice for services through November 30, 2023.

Invoice No. 15474

Lapeer County —
General
Sheriff's Department
CMH
FOC
District Court
Health Department
911 MAPE
911 POAM
Non-Union

TOTAL DUE

$945.00
$ 0.00
$225.00
$ 0.00
$ 0.00
$ 0.00
$ 570.00
$ 0.00
$ 0.00

$1,740.00

Please make check payable to Shifman Fournier, PLC



Thank you for your attention in this matter. If you have any questions or comments,

please feel free to contact me at your convenience.

Cc

Very truly yours,

SHIFMIAN FOURNI

ica Fanego, Office Ad(ngrator

essica@shifmanfournier.com

Doreen Clark, Office Manager and FOIA Coordinator



DATE: November 30, 2023

XX REQUEST FOR ACTION
FOR YOUR INFORMATION

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

TO: Committee of the Whole

FROM: Moses Sanzo, Administrator

KKK K K K oK 5K ok ok 5k oK oK K K K ok 5K K K 3k ok 3K K3k ok ok k3K oK K K 3K 5K ok 3k ok oK ok ok K sk ok K ok 3k sk K Sk ok ok K 3k sk 5k 5K 5k >k 3k 5K Kk Kk 3k

SUMMARY OF REQUEST / INFORMATION: Request to renew our Service
Agreement with Comprehensive Risk Services, LLC, for Workers Compensation
Services for a two-year period (FY 2024 AND 2025), which covers both the
County of Lapeer and the Lapeer County Medical Care Facility.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: This is a continuation of current service
contract, which expires December 31, 2023. The cost is shared based on
percentage of utilization (38% Lapeer County and 62% MCF).

CONTACT PERSON(S): Moses Sanzo/Sheryl Sims
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: Service Agreement

DRAFT MOTION:

Motion by , supported by , to recommend
to the Full Board to authorize renewal of the Workers Compensation
Service Agreement with Comprehensive Risk Services, LLC, for FY 2024
and 2025, for the annual amount of $29,850 each year (with the cost
to be shared 38% as Lapeer County’s portion and 62% as Lapeer
County Medical Care Facility’s portion) for the period of January 1,
2024 through December 31, 2025, to be paid from line item 101-242-
713.000, with the understanding that this motion authorizes the
Finance Department to process the payments as outlined; and further,
to authorize the Chairman to sign said agreement.

ATTACHMENTS YES__X NO



SERVICE AGREEMENT

In consideration to the mutual covenants herein contained, Comprehensive Risk Services, LLC, a Michigan
Limited Liability Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Company™), first party does hereby contract and
agree to County of Lapeer (hereinafter referred to as “the Employer”), second party as follows:

For the period from January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2025 the Company will act as advisor and
representative of the Employer in all matters pertaining to any and all obligations and requirements as
imposed by the Workers’ Disability Compensation Act of the State of Michigan. The services contemplated
under this contract to be rendered by the Company shall include...

I
GENERAL

The Company will assist the Employer to qualify with the proper State authorities as a self-insured. The
Company will, as Exclusive Agent of Record for the Employer, assist the Employer in securing excess
insurance.

11
LOSS PREVENTION

The Company shall be permitted, but not obligated, to inspect at any reasonable time, the workplaces,
operations, machinery and equipment, owned or operated by the Employer named in this Agreement.
Neither the right to make inspection, nor the making thereof, nor any report thereon, shall constitute an
undertaking on behalf of, or for, the benefit of the employer or others, to determine or warrant that such
workplaces, operations, machinery or equipment are safe.

The Company will consult with and advise the Employer regarding necessary industrial, medical, nursing,
and hospitalization services.
11
CLAIMS SERVICES

The Company will compile and file all notices and reports required under the Workers’ Disability
Compensation Act, upon receipt of initial report from the Employer.

Assist in preparation and computation of State Fund Assessments and reports. Employer to pay any sums
that may become due for said assessments.

Conduct the necessary investigation in order to determine the liability of the Employer under the Workers’
Compensation Act.

Furnish full and complete monthly reports to the Employer of all accidents, including occupational diseases,
and will tabulate all payments made and reserves set up for the benefit and expense on account of liability
and/or reasonably anticipated liability, for accidental injuries and/or occupational diseases sustained by
employees.

Prepare on behalf of the Employer for all scheduled hearings before the Workers’ Compensation
Department; but all legal expenses attendance thereto, including witness fees, for general and expert
testimony shall be paid for by the Employer.



The Company shall notify excess carriers of all potential loss that may exceed the Employer’s retention in
accordance with the reporting requirements stated in the excess policy; providing proper and timely notice
of such loss is received from the Employer.

The Company shall administer all claims with dates of injury or disease occurring within the period of this
Agreement to conclusion. In the event of termination of this or any future agreements and as indicated in
Section V below, such claim administration will be subject to a per claim fee based on open cases and any
incurred but not reported cases at the time of termination and as indicated in Section V below.

v
SERVICE FEE

CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION

January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024 = $29,850
January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025 = $29,850

**All Fees Payable on Semi Annual Installments of $14,925 beginning on January 1, 2024

BILL REVIEW
$8.00 per bill
Professional Review: $85 per hour
PPO Fees: 30% of Savings

**Subject to change as this is a vended service

CMS REPORTING
$8.25 per submission

**Subject to change as this is a vended service

LOSS PREVENTION

Up to six days of loss control per year are available. Additional Loss Control days available at a rate of
$150 per hour.

\%
INDEMNIFICATION

A. The Employer agrees that it will defend and indemnify the Company and hold the Company
completely harmless against all claims, demands, proceedings, actions, damages, costs, and expenses to
which the Company may be subjected, including without limitation court costs and attorneys fees, as a
consequence of the Company’s fulfilling its obligations under this Agreement; provided that they were not
caused by the willful misconduct or negligence of the Company or its employees.

B. The Company agrees that it will defend and indemnify and hold the Employer completely harmless
against all claims, demands, proceedings, actions, damages, costs and expenses, to which the Employer
may be subjected, including without limitation court costs and attorneys’ fees, solely as a consequence of
the willful misconduct or negligent acts or omissions of the Company or its employees in connection with
fulfilling its obligations under this Agreement.



VI
TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

Termination of this Agreement shall occur upon the happening of any of the following;:

1. The expiration of the term specified in this Agreement.

2. The giving of sixty (60) days prior written notice by one party of this Agreement
to the other party. The cancellation shall be based upon an actual incurred fee
basis. If on a flat annual fee, minimum, or deposit basis, the cancellation shall be

pro-rata.
3.
(a) Termination by the Workers’ Compensation Agency of the Employer’s authority
to operate a self-insured workers’ compensation program
(b) Loss by the Company of its ability to act as a service company within the State of
Michigan.
4. Continuation of Services. In the event this Agreement is terminated, CRS will continue to

administer any qualified claims or losses remaining open, where appropriate, provided that
Client shall continue to make adequate funds available for the payment of such qualified
claims or losses and any Allocated Loss Expenses. The additional fee for this service shall
be negotiated and agreed upon prior to the effective date of termination. If the parties fail
to reach agreement regarding the additional fee for this service, CRS shall suspend all
activity on Client’s files and CRS shall thereafter have no responsibility for the proper
disposition of such matters.

VII
COMMUNICATIONS

All notices, requests, and other communications required or permitted under Articles VI & VII, 2. of this
Agreement other than routine correspondence shall be in writing and delivered by hand or mailed, postage
prepaid, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the other party at the following addresses
or such other addresses as may be specified in a notice sent by a party in accordance with the provisions of
this Article VIIIL.

The Employer agrees to notify the Company of any additional Michigan locations. At such time, allow the
Company the opportunity to have discussions regarding additional compensation, if warranted.

The Employer: County of Lapeer
255 Clay Street, Suite 301
Lapeer, MI 48446

The Company: Comprehensive Risk Services, LLC.
PO Box 240
Williamston, MI 48895



VIII
LIMITATIONS OF PARTIES’ LIABILITY

A. It is hereby expressly agreed by the parties to this Agreement that the Company by entering into
this Agreement does not assume any liabilities to any person or entity except those expressly set
forth in this Agreement, and that the Company by entering into this Agreement does not assume
any obligations or liabilities to any person or entity which is not a party to this Agreement including,
without limitation, the Employer’s employees.

B. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor shall be construed to nor shall give rise to any rights
or causes of action in any person or entity not a party to this Agreement against either of the parties
to this Agreement.

IX
MANDATORY INSURER REPORTING SERVICES

The Company will perform the Employer’s reporting of Workers’ Compensation (NGHP) claims, as
defined by MMSEA Section 111 and related statutes, regulations, memoranda, bulletins, user guides and
directives.

The Company will comply with all MMSEA Reporting requirements.

The Company will conduct Medicare Query Functions (MQF), ORM reporting functions, and TPOC
reporting functions in a manner consistent with acceptable industry practices, statutory requirements,
regulatory requirements, or other Government Memoranda, Bulletins and Alerts.

The Company will complete all MSP Services in a reasonable time as agreed upon by the Employer and
provide updates to the Employer when appropriate or requested.

The Company shall designate itself as the Employer’s Recovery Agent in the appropriate fields as
designated by CMS in order to assist the Employer with the recovery process. Both the RRE and the
Recovery Agent will receive recovery-related correspondence.

The Employer will coordinate their registration of any Responsible Reporting Entities “RREs” as required
by MMSEA and subsequent memoranda, bulletins, alerts, directives, and user guides from CMS.

e The Employer will designate the Company as its “Account Manager”.

e The Employer will designate the Company as its “Recovery Agent”.

¢ The Employer will communicate in a timely manner any changes in CMS profile
information, primary contact for the Employer, and any other changes that may affect the
Company’s ability to accurately report on behalf of the Employer, included but not
limited to any updates to the reporting profile as required by Medicare.

The Company will not be responsible or liable for inaccurate or incomplete claims data for any claim
transferred from another Third-Party Administrator (TPA) or Insurance Carrier.



X
ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the subject
matter of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby and supersedes all prior promises,
representations, understandings, or agreements, whether written or oral, of the parties with respect thereto.

X1
AMENDMENT OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement can only be amended, modified, or changed by a written agreement executed by all of the
parties to this Agreement.
X1
CHOICE OF LAW

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan.

XII
ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement may not be assigned by either party hereto without prior written consent of the other party,
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

COUNTY OF LAPEER COMPREHENSIVE RISK SERVICES, LLC

By: By: W/m Chraimen

Title: Title: Managing Partner

Date: Date: 11/2/2023




LAPEER COUNTY Summary Report
Valued as of 09/30/2023 Combined Lapeer Cty & MCF

Period (Policy Period) Open Open Cisd Cisd Record Total Indemnity Medical Expense Total Paid Outstanding Total Incurred Recovery Net Incurred

Med ind Med Ind Only Reserves

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

o
o
o
o
o
o

01/01/1985 - 12/31/1985 0 0 0 1 0 1 0.00 7,493.26 625.46 0.00 8,118.72 0.00 8,118.72 0.00 8,118.72
01/01/1991 - 12/31/1991 0 0 0 1 0 1 140,521.02 75,068.14 18,394.93 5,523.84 239,507.93 0.00 239,507.93 0.00 239,507.93
01/01/1992 - 12/31/1992 0 0 0 1 0 1 66,661.87 12,081.65 13,305.51 48,851.61 140,900.64 0.00 140,900.64 0.00 140,900.64
01/01/2007 - 12/31/2007 0 0 0 1 0 1 269,596.05 137,998.16 31,810.87 38,299.08 477,704.16 0.00 477,704.16 -177,704.16 300,000.00
01/01/2008 - 12/31/2008 0 0 70 3 1 74 221,516.92 444,731.67 49,150.77 15,750.51 731,149.87 0.00 731,149.87 0.00 731,149.87
01/01/2009 - 12/31/2009 0 0 62 4 0 66 2,895.77 23,165.20 446.73 10,822.62 37,330.32 0.00 37,330.32 0.00 37,330.32
01/01/2010 - 12/31/2010 0 0 80 4 0 84 23,394.90 56,760.04 3,776.82 25,711.67 109,643.43 0.00 109,643.43 0.00 109,643.43
01/01/2011 - 12/31/2011 0 0 69 19 0 88 28,396.78 62,726.30 2,899.60 32,830.55 126,853.23 0.00 126,853.23 0.00 126,853.23
01/01/2012 - 12/31/2012 0 0 63 19 0 82 157,344.17 136,944.33 17,313.00 33,349.04 344,950.54 0.00 344,950.54 0.00 344,950.54
01/01/2013 - 12/31/2013 0 0 46 23 1 69 194,852.28 157,883.59 23512.35 58,382.88 434,631.10 0.00 434,631.10 0.00 434,631.10
01/01/2014 - 12/31/2014 0 0 56 12 0 68 92,332.06 71,079.16 15,530.01 26,837.91 205,779.14 0.00 205,779.14 0.00 205,779.14
01/01/2015 - 12/31/2015 0 0 61 7 1 69 63,536.61 87,815.53 13,629.51 38,923.01 203,904.66 0.00 203,904.66 0.00 203,904.66
01/01/2016 - 12/31/2016 0 1 47 0 1 49 0.00 406,512.71 31,860.69 0.00 438,373.40 63,852.79 502,226.19 0.00 502,226.19
01/01/2017 - 12/31/2017 0 0 46 3 1 50 4,629.13 37,222.69 2,758.91 0.00 44,610.73 0.00 44,610.73 0.00 44,610.73
01/01/2018 - 12/31/2018 0 0 41 2 0 43 9,632.17 35,916.99 9,557.09 0.00 55,106.25 0.00 55,106.25 0.00 55,106.25
01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019 0 0 39 3 0 42 9,828.83 49,306.30 12,366.48 0.00 71,501.61 0.00 71,501.61 0.00 71,501.61
01/01/2020 - 12/31/2020 0 1 19 39 0 59 98,104.10 36,019.32 16,670.07 40,112.94 190,906.43 16,131.75 207,038.18 0.00 207,038.18
01/01/2021 - 12/31/2021 0 1 4 38 0 80 179,663.30 70,389.14 34,249.03 30,283.42 314,584.89 2,459.55 317,044.44 0.00 317,044.44
01/01/2022 - 12/31/2022 1 4 44 2 0 51 94,581.42 148,018.19 44,435.00 0.00 287,034.70 55,529.12 342,563.82 0.00 342,563.82
01/01/2023 - 12/31/2023 10 3 19 0 0 32 1,190.52 9,474.29 3,389.61 4,926.97 18,981.39 60,583.53 79,564.92 0.00 79,564.92
Grand Totals - 1,021 Policies 11 10 802 182 5 1,010 1,658,677.90 2,066,606.66 345682.53 410,606.05 4,481,573.14  198,556.74 4,680,129.88 -177,704.16 4,502,425.72
10/31/2023 11:33:04 AM Page 1 of 2 m’rl

COMPREHENSIVE



LAPEER COUNTY Summary Report
Valued as of 09/30/2023 Combined Lapeer Cty & MCF

Report Definition

Description: Summary Report

Filters: Type Of Claim (Claim) is not equal to Fund Assessment
Groups: Period (Policy Period)

Sorts: No Sorts

Options: Valuation Date is 09/30/2023

Run Date: 10/31/2023

10/31/2023 11:33:04 AM Page 2 of 2 lﬂTl \

COMPREMENSIVE



5c

DATE: December 11, 2023
XX REQUEST FOR ACTION
____ FOR YOUR INFORMATION
__ REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
TO: Committee of the Whole

FROM: Administration/BOC

KK KoK R KoK K oK oK Kok K 5k 5K K5k K ok K 3K oK >k sk sk sk ok ok ok sk ok ok sk ok sk ok ok 5K 5K >k 5k K 5K 5K 5k 5k K 5k 3K 5k K 3K K 3k ok 3K sk sk ok ok sk ok sk sk sk sk sk K sk k sk

SUMMARY OF REQUEST / INFORMATION: To approve the MERS documentation in
order to proceed to remove the seven (7) County Commissioners from the Elected Officials
Division 13 and create a new Defined Contribution Division for Elected Commissioners. This will
leave the remaining Elected Officials in the Defined Benefit Plan and the newly created Division is
proposed to be frozen and converted into a new Defined Contribution plan. Documents from
MERS to be approved by the Board include:

Resolution Adopting the MERS Defined Contribution Plan (1 page)
MERS Defined Contribution Plan Adoption Agreement (5 pages)
Contribution Addendum for MERS Defined Contribution (2 pages)
Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement (7 pages)

Addendum for Plan Closures, Freezes and Conversions (5 pages)

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:
CONTACT PERSON(S): Commissioner Gary Howell

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The BOC has always been in the MERS Defined Benefit Plan
and this will allow them to be placed in their own separate MERS Defined Contribution Plan.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: All documents listed above.

DRAFT MOTION:

Motion by , supported by , to approve the following
documents from M.E.R.S. (Municipal Employees’ Retirement System) related to
place the seven (7) County Commissioners from the other Elected Officials Division
13 into their own separate Defined Contribution Division, which includes a Defined
Benefit freeze to Defined Contribution with the conversion option, per the request of
the Board of Commissioners, as attached:

Resolution Adopting the MERS Defined Contribution Plan (7 page)
MERS Defined Contribution Plan Adoption Agreement (5 pages)
Contribution Addendum for MERS Defined Contribution (2 pages)
Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement (7 pages)

Addendum for Plan Closures, Freezes and Conversions (5 pages)

and further, to authorize the Chairman to sign said documents.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED.



Resolution Adopting the MERS
Defined Gontribution Plan

©MERS

Municipal Employees' Retirement System
1184 Municipal Way: Lansing, Ml 48917 | 800.767.MERS (6377):| Fax 517.703.9711 WWWEFSOTmICH.Col -

This Resolution is entered into under the provisions of 1996 PA 220 and the Municipal Employees’
Retirement System of Michigan (“MERS”) Plan Document, as each may be amended.

WHEREAS, the participating entity desires to adopt the MERS Defined Contribution Plan for its
designated employees;

WHEREAS, the participating entity has furnished MERS with required data regarding each eligible
employee and retiree;

WHEREAS, as a condition of MERS membership, and pursuant to the MERS Retirement Board’s
power as plan administrator and trustee under Plan Document Section 71 and MCL 38.1536, as each
may be amended, it is appropriate and necessary to enter into a binding agreement providing for the
administration of the Defined Contribution Plan, the reporting of wages, and the payment of the required
contributions of a participating entity and withholding of employee contributions; now, therefore,

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED:

On behalf of the participating entity, the governing body of

Lapeer County adopts the MERS Defined
Contribution Plan in accordance with Plan Section 4 for its eligible employees as described
in the MERS Defined Contribution Adoption Agreement, subject to the MERS Plan
Document and as authorized by 1996 PA 220, as both may be amended;

| hereby certify that the above is a true copy of the Defined Contribution Resolution adopted at the official
meeting held by the governing body of this municipality:

Dated: , 20

(Signature of Authorized Official)

Printed name:

(Authorized Official - printed)

This Resolution shall have no legal effect under the MERS Plan Document until a certified copy
of this adopting Resolution is filed with MERS, MERS determines that all necessary requirements
under the Plan Document, the Adoption Agreement, and this Resolution have been met, and
MERS certifies the Resolution below.

Received and Approved by the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan:

Dated: , 20

(Signature of Authorized MERS Representative)

Form MD-069 (version 2019-01-14) Page 1 of 1
R e e e,



Vel @
MERS Defined Contribution Plan Adoption Agreement @MEI{S

Municipal Employees' Retirement System

I :
WWW.mersoetmich.com -

The Employer, a participating municipality or court within the state of Michigan that has adopted MERS
coverage, hereby establishes the following Defined Contribution Plan provided by MERS of Michigan, as
authorized by 1996 PA 220 in accordance with the MERS Plan Document.

Lapeer Co

1134 Municipal Way. Lansing, Ml 48917 | 800.767.MERS (6377) | Fax 517.708.9711

I. Employer Name Municipality #: 4403

Division name Commissioners on/aft 1/1/2024

Note: This division should reflect how you currently define employees who are eligible to participate, for
example, All full-time Employees, New hires after 1/1/2019, etc.

II. Effective Date
Check one:
A. If this is the initial Adoption Agreement for this group, the effective date shall be the first day
of January = 5424

{3 This municipality or division is new to MERS, so vesting credit prior to the initial MERS
effective date by each eligible employee shall be credited as follows (choose one):

(J Vesting credit from date of hire  {] No vesting credit
{3 This division is for new hires, rehires, and transfers of current Defined Benefit* division
# and/or current Hybrid division #

For divisions that are closing or freezing with or without conversion, the Employer must complete

the Addenadum for Plan Ereeze, Closure and Conversions

B. ©J If this is an amendment of an existing Adoption Agreement (existing division number
), the effective date shall be the first day of , 20 .
Note: You only need to mark changes to your plan throughout the remainder of this Agreement.

c. © Ifthisis to separate employees from an existing Defined Contribution division (existing division

number(s) ) into a new division,
the effective date shall be the first day of , 20

D. (7 If this is to merge division(s) into division(s) , the
effective date shall be the first of , 20

E. J If this is an amendment to close Defined Benefit division(s) # or Hybrid
division(s) with new hires, rehires, and transfers going into existing Defined
Contribution division # , the effective date shall be (month/year).

Note: Closing this Defined Benefit or Hybrid division(s) will change future invoices to a flat

dollar amount instead of a percentage of payroll, as provided in your most recent annual
actuarial valuation.

(The amount may be adjusted for any benefit modifications that may have taken place since then).

R—

Form MD-070 (version 2022-10-06) o Page 1 Of5




MERS Defined Contribution Plan Adoption Agreement

= L B N B e S BN e o ot 5
Plan Eligibility

Only those employees eligible for MERS membership may participate in the MERS Defined Contribution
Plan. If an employee classification is included in the plan, then employees that meet this definition are
required to participate in the plan and earn time toward vesting. All eligible employees must be reported
to MERS reported to MERS and earn time toward vesting. Some excluded classifications require
additional information below. Please describe the specific classifications that are eligible for MERS within
this division:

Voter-Elected Commissioners

(For example: e.g., Full-time employees, Clerical staff, Union Employees participating in XXXX union)
This Division includes public safety employees: [:I Yes @ No
To further define eligibility (select all that apply):

Not

Employee Classification ;'"c'“de" Excluded Employed |

Temporary Employees: Those who will work for the municipality fewer than
months in total

Part-Time Employees: Those who regularly work fewer than per
Seasonal Employees: Those who are employed for tasks that occur at specific times of
the year

Voter-Elected Officials
Appointed Officials: An official appointed to a voter-elected office

AEOAE @

Contract Employees
Other:
Other 2:

(T . .
aOoQoo o[ 3

Probationary Periods (select one):

D Contributions will begin after the probationary period has been satisfied. Probationary periods
are allowed in one-month increments, no longer than 12 months. During this probationary period,
contributions will not be reported and service toward vesting will begin when probationary period has
ended.
The probationary period will be month(s).
Comments:

Contributions will begin with the employee’s date of hire (no Probationary Period). Effective with the
date of hire, wages and any associated contributions must be submitted to MERS.

6 3 W 2o A B S 2 G W G e R S P Sy 0 SR U PR S A RN P S YR ) R s AR SR P R KL S S B Ty S e L AR A e 2 B e N
Form MD-070 (version 2022-10-06)




MERS Defined Contribution Plan Adoption Agreement
IV. Provisions
1. Leaves of Absence

Regardless of whether an employee is earning a wage while on the following types of leave:
e Third-party wages are not used in determining contributions for periods of leave.

e Vesting under elapsed time continues to accrue even if wages are not earned and contributions
are zero.

Note: Employers who determine vesting based on an “hours-reported” method, should report
actual worked hours for the month where there was a leave.

Types of leave include:

e Short Term and Long Term Disability

e Workers Compensation

¢ Unpaid Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA)

Leaves of absence due to military service are governed by the federal Uniformed Services
Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA), IRC 414(u), effective January 1, 2007,

IRC 401(a)(37). Military reporting requires historical wage and contribution reporting for Defined
Contribution as applicable.

2. Definition of Compensation

The Definition of Compensation selected must be used when determining both employer and
employee contributions. Employers may include wage information along with employee and employer
contributions when submitting wage/contribution reports to MERS.

Select your Definition of Compensation: £ ; /
Click here to view details
El Base Wages @ Box 1 Wages of W-2 Gross Wages of Base, Box 1, and

(O custom Definition Gross Wages
(To customize your definition, please complete the Custom Definition of Compensation Addendum.)

3. Forfeiture
A forfeiture occurs when a participant separates from employment prior to meeting the associated
elapsed time (or hours reported) to receive vesting. The percentage of his/her employer contribution
account balance that has not vested as of the date of termination will forfeit after 12 consecutive
months following the termination date reported by the employer, or earlier, if the System distributes the
participant’s vested portion. MERS will utilize any available forfeiture balance as an automatic funding
source applied to reported employer contributions at the time of reporting.

4. Vesting
Vesting will be credited using (check one):
Elapsed time method — Employees will be credited with one vesting year for each 12 months of
, continuous employment from the date of hire.
) Hours reported method — Employees will be credited with one vesting year for each calendar
year in which hours are worked

Form MD-070 (version 2022-10-06)  Page3of5



MERS Defined Gontribution Plan Adoption Agreement

Vesting schedule will be (check one):

O] Immediate
(®] Cliff vesting (fully vested after a specified number of years, not to exceed 10 years)
will be 5 years.
i Graded Vesting (the % of vesting acquired after employment for the designated number of

years, not to exceed 10 years)

In the event of disability or death, an employee’s (or his/her beneficiary’s) entire employer contribution
account shall be 100% vested, to the extent that the balance of such account has not previously
been forfeited.

Normal Retirement Age (presumed to be age 60 unless otherwise specified) 60
If an employee is still employed with the municipality at the age specified here, their entire employer
contribution balance will become 100% vested regardless of years of service.

5. Contributions
a. Contributions will be submitted (check one):
Contributions will be remitted according to Employer's “Payroll Period” which represents the
actual period amounts are withheld from participant paychecks, or within the month during which

amounts are withheld.

0O Weekly ) Semi-Monthly (twice each month)
) Bi-Weekly (every other week) (@ Monthly
b. Employer Contributions

Required Employee Contributions and Employer Contributions are outlined using associated
Contribution Addendum for MERS Defined Contribution (MD-073).

C. Post-tax voluntary employee contributions are allowable into a Defined Contribution account
subject to Section 415(c) limitations of the Internal Revenue Code.

6. Loans: [ shall be permitted {el shall not be permitted
If Loans are elected, please refer to the Defined Contribution & 457 L oan Addendum.

7. Rollovers from qualified plans are permitted and the plan will account separately for pre-tax and
post-tax contributions and earnings thereon.

V. Appointing MERS as the Plan Administrator

The Employer hereby agrees to the provisions of this MERS Defined Contribution Plan Adoption Agreement
and appoints MERS as the Plan Administrator pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Plan. The
Employer also agrees that in the event of any conflict between the MERS Plan Document and the MERS
Defined Contribution Plan Adoption Agreement, the provisions of the Plan Document control.

Page 4 of 5

Form MD-Q70 (version 2022-10-06)



MERS Defined Contribution Plan Adoption Agreement
I 7 4 e e e R T ]
VI. Modification of the terms of the Adoption Agreement

If the Employer desires to amend any of its elections contained in this Adoption Agreement, including
attachments, the Governing Body or Chief Judge, by resolution or official action accepted by MERS,
must adopt a new Adoption Agreement. The amendment of this Agreement is not effective until
approved by MERS.

VIl. Enforcement

1. The Employer acknowledges that the Michigan Constitution of 1963, Article 9, Section 24, provides
that accrued financial benefits arising under a public Employer’s retirement plan are a contractual
obligation of the Employer that may not be diminished or impaired.

2. The Employer agrees that, pursuant to the Michigan Constitution, its obligations to pay required
contributions are contractual obligations to its employees and to MERS and may be enforced in a
court of competent jurisdiction;

3. The Employer acknowledges that employee contributions (if any) and employer contributions must be
submitted in accordance with the MERS Reporting and Contribution Enforcement Policy, the terms of
which are incorporated herein by reference;

4. The Employer acknowledges that late or missed contributions will be required to be made up,
including any applicable gains, pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code;

5. Should the Employer fail to make its required contribution(s) when due, MERS may implement
any applicable interest charges and penalties pursuant to the MERS Reporting and Contribution
Enforcement Policy and Plan Document Section 79, and take any appropriate legal action, including
but not limited to filing a lawsuit and reporting the entity to the Treasurer of the State of Michigan in
accordance with MCL 141.1544(d), Section 44 of PA 436 of 2012, as may be amended.

6. Itis expressly agreed and understood as an integral and non-severable part of this Agreement
that Section 43 of the Plan Document shall not apply to this Agreement and its administration or
interpretation. In the event any alteration of the terms or conditions of this Agreement is made
or occurs, under Section 43 or other plan provision or law, MERS and the Retirement Board, as
sole trustee and fiduciary of the MERS plan and its trust reserves, and whose authority is non-
delegable, shall have no obligation or duty to administer (or to have administered) the MERS Defined
Contribution Plan, to authorize the transfer of any defined benefit assets to the MERS Defined
Contribution Plan, or to continue administration by MERS or any third-party administrator of the
MERS Defined Contribution Plan.

VIIl. Execution

Authorized Designee of Governing Body of Municipality or Chief Judge of Court

The foregoing Adoption Agreement is hereby approved by on
(Name of Approving Employer)
the day of , 20

Authorized signature:

Title:

Received and Approved by the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan

Dated: , 20 Signature:

(Authorized MERS Signatory)

Form MD-070 (version 2022-10-06) " Page 5 of 5



Contribution Addendum for @MEI{S@)

MERS Defined Gontribution (and DC pOftiOﬂ of HYbrld) Municipal Employees’ Retirement System

Name of Participating Employer

=]
o

1184 Municipal Way: Lansing, MI 48917 | 800.767.2308 | Fax 517.703.9711

This is an Addendum to the Adoption Agreement completed by Lapeer Co

for the following:

Commissioners on/aft 1/1/2024

Employee Group Name
Division Code:

The Addendum accompanies the MERS 401 (a) Defined Contribution (DC) Adoption Agreement. Please
complete this addendum for each contribution structure associated with the covered employee group.

Section 1: Matching Contributions
The Participating Employer will make matching contributions into the DC Plan based on

(CHECK ALL THAT APPLY):
[J Employee’s MERS 457 program election
(J Employee’s non-MERS 457 program election
[J Employee’s one-time election of MERS Defined Contribution required employee contributions
(J Other

For each payroll period in which employee contributions described in Section 1 are made, the Participating
Employer will contribute % of the employee contribution amount.

For example, if an Employer elects a 50% match, then for every 1% the participant defers to the Program,
the Employer will contribute 0.5% to the Program.

Employer Cap: The Employer elects the following matching contribution cap:

(0 Percentage Cap: In no event will matching contributions made on behalf of a participant
exceed % of the participant’s IRS Section 401(a)(17) includable compensation as defined by the
Employers’ Adoption Agreement. Match cannot exceed 100% of participant’s income.

) Flat Dollar Cap: In no event will matching contributions made on behalf of a participant exceed a flat
dollar amount equal to $ per

Form MD-073 (version 2023-06-09) ~ Pagedof?2



Contribution Addendum for @]\A]ZI{SQa

MERS Defined Gontribution (and DC pOftiOﬂ of HYbrld) Municipal Employees’ Refirement System

1184 Municipal Way Lansing, M| 48917 | 800.767.2308 | Fax 517.703.9711 | wwwimersofmich.com _

Section 2: Required DC Contributions
Select one:

[® Employees are required to contribute per pay period: 2.53% (specify $ or %)

) Range from to (specify $ or %) per pay period

(0 Employee contributions must be in whole numbers
& Employee contribution election may be in increments of % (for example, 0.5% increments)

;;}Choice of contribution amounts per pay period:

Employee Contribution ($ or %) Employer Contribution ($ or %)

The Employer designates 0% (specify $ or %) as the default contribution

Federal law requires employees only be offered a contribution choice at the time of first eligibility.
| Therefore, the default will apply when an eligible employee fails to make an election prior to the
first payroll reporting in which they qualified for the plan, and those employees who are transferred,
rehired, or previously covered under a non-MERS plan.

Direct Required Employee Contributions: Pre-tax ) After-tax

Section 3: Non-Matching Contributions

The Employer hereby elects to make contributions to the participants’ accounts without regard to a
participant’s contribution amount (check all that apply):

(0 Annual: A one-time annual contribution of $ or % of compensation per participant.
Vi Pay Period: $ or _’ % of compensation per participant for each payroll period.
(] One time: $

Form MD-073 (version 2023-06-09) ~ Page20f2



Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement @MEI{S

Mumclpul Employees Retirement System

1184 Municipal Way Lansing, Ml 48917 | 800:767.MERS (6877) | Fax 517.703.97:11 »,y,m mersofmich co ’-

The Employer, a participating municipality or participating court within the state of Michigan, hereby
agrees to adopt and administer the MERS Defined Benefit Plan provided by the Municipal Employees’
Retirement System of Michigan, as authorized by 1996 PA 220, in accordance with the MERS Plan
Document, as both may be amended, subject to the terms and conditions herein.

I. Employer Name Lapeer Co Municipality #: 4403

If new to MERS, please provide your municipality’s fiscal year: through .
Month Month

Il. Effective Date
Check one:

A. If this is the initial Adoption Agreement for this group, the effective date shall be the first day
of , 20

(J This municipality or division is new to MERS, so vesting credit prior to the initial MERS
effective date by each eligible employee shall be credited as follows (choose one):
(J All prior service from date of hire
Prior service proportional to assets transferred; all service used for vesting
[J Prior service and vesting service proportional to assets transferred
[ No prior service but grant vesting credit
2} No prior service or vesting credit

[J Link this new division to division number for purposes of determining
contributions (Unless otherwise specified, the standard transfer/rehire rules apply)

For divisions that are closing or freezing with or without conversion, the Employer must

complete the Addendum for Plan Ereeze, Closure and Gonversions

B. [J If this is an amendment of an existing Adoption Agreement (Defined Benefit division number
), the effective date shall be the first day of ___/20___ (mm/yy). Please note: You only
need to mark changes to your plan throughout the remainder of this Agreement.

C. OO If this is a temporary benefit (Defined Benefit division number(s) ¥;
select one of the following:

(] This is a temporary Benefit Window with a duration of 2-6 months. Effective dates
are from ___ /01/___ through the last day of __ /20___ (mm/yy). Complete provisions as
applicable under Section IV of this form.

[J This is a temporary Lump Sum Buyout Program for terminated vested participants with
a duration of 6-24 months. Effective dates are from ___/01/___ through the last day of
__/20__ (mm/yy). Payout will reflect ____ % (1-100%) of the participant’s present value of
accrued benefit. For example, if 40% is used, the payout will be 40% of the present value
of the benefit. This percentage cannot be changed once adopted.

S s Y R B e R R R i T ISRl | 7]
Form DB-002 (version 2022-10-04) Page 1 of 7




Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement

D. {4 If this is to separate employees from an existing Defined Benefit division (existing division

number(s) 13
the effective date shall be the first day of ___ December 902
E. [J If this is to merge division(s) into division(s)

the effective date shall be the first of

, 20

F. (3 If this is an amendment to close Defined Benefit division(s) #
hires, rehires, and transfers going into an existing Defined Benefit division #

the effective date shall be (month/year).

) into a new division,

, with new

Note: Closing this Defined Benefit division(s) will change future invoices to a flat dollar
amount instead of a percentage of payroll, as provided in your most recent annual

actuarial valuation.

(The amount may be adjusted for any benefit modifications that may have taken place since then).

lll. Plan Eligibility
Division Title; Commissioners

Only those employees eligible for MERS membership may participate in the MERS Defined Benefit
Plan. If an employee classification is included in the plan, then employees that meet this definition will
receive service credit if they work the required number of hours to meet the service credit qualification
defined below. All eligible employees must be reported to MERS. Please describe the specific

classifications that are eligible for MERS within this division:

Voter-Elected Commissioners

(For example: e.g., Full-time employees, Clerical staff, Union Employees participating in XXXX union)

This Division includes public safety employees (this information is used for actuarial purposes only. It

does not relate to the additional tax for early distribution): D Yes

To further define eligibility (select all that apply):

@No

R Not |
Employee Classification Included | Excluded Employed

Temporary Employees: Those who will work for the municipality fewer than
months in total

-
1 A
|

Part-Time Employees: Those who regularly work fewer than per

Seasonal Employees: Those who are employed for tasks that occur at specific times of
the year

Voter-Elected Officials

Appointed Officials: An official appointed to a voter-elected office

Contract Employees

Other:

Other 2:

AOd0eE a0 0

o ie s e i fiw §is

Form DB-002 (version 2022-10-04)

Page 2 of 7



Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement
Probationary Periods (select one):

D Service will begin after the probationary period has been satisfied. Probationary periods are allowed in
one-month increments, no longer than 12 months. During this probationary period, the employer will
not report or provide service. Service will begin to accrue and contributions must be reported when
the Probationary Period ends.

The probationary period will be month(s).
Comments:

Service will begin with the employee’s date of hire (no Probationary Period). Effective with the date of
hire, wages paid and any associated contributions must be submitted to MERS.

IV. Provisions
1. Service Credit Qualification
To clarify how eligible employees earn service credit, please indicate how many hours per month an
eligible employee needs to work. For example, if you require 10 eight-hour days, this would be 80
hours per month. If an hours and days has been previously defined (like 10 seven-hour days), stating
“70 hours” will be required. Employees must meet the definition of Plan Eligibility in order to earn
service credit under the plan.

To receive one month of service credit, an employee shall work (or be paid for as if working)
80 hours in a month.

2. Leaves of Absence

Indicate by checking the boxes below, whether the potential for service credit will be allowed if an

eligible employee is on one of the following types of leave, regardless of meeting the service credit

qualification criteria.

Regardless whether an eligible employee is awarded service credit while on the selected type(s) of

leave:

e MERS will skip over these months when determining the FAC amount for benefit calculations.

e Third-party wages are not reported for leaves of absence.

* Employers are not required to remit employer contributions based on leaves of absence when
no wages are paid by the employer.

e For contributory divisions, employee contributions are required where service credit is granted
and due at the time of monthly wage and contribution reporting. Employers may use the
following formula to calculate employee contributions: the employee’s current hourly rate (prior to
leave), multiplied by service credit qualification (hours) multiplied by employee contribution. For
example, if employees’ hourly rate is $20, the division requires 120 hours to obtain service credit,
and employee contributions are 5%, the calculation will look like: $20/hour X 120 X .05 = $120 in
employee contribution for that leave month. Employers may use another internal formula, if they
choose and MERS will make note of it.

If an alternative formula is going to be used, please describe that here:

Form DB-002 (version 2022-10-04) Page 3 of 7



Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement

iz}

Type of Leave Service Credit
Granted Excluded

Short-Term Disability

Long-Term Disability

N

Workers’ Compensation
Unpaid Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA)

a4
EHEEE

Other:
for example, sick and accident, administrative, educational, sabbatical, etc.

Other 2: D

Additional leave types as above

[
0

Leaves of absence due to military service are governed by the Federal Uniformed Services Employment
and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA), IRC 414(u), effective January 1, 2007, IRC 401(a)(37).
Military reporting requires historical wage and contribution reporting for Defined Benefit as applicable.

3. Definition of Compensation

The Definition of Compensation is used to calculate a participant’s final average compensation and is
used in determining both employer and employee contributions. Wages paid to employees, calculated
using the elected definition, must be reported to MERS.

Select your Definition of Compensation:
@ Base Wages Box 1 Wages of W-2 Gross Wages Click here to view details of Base,

Box 1, and Gross Wages
@ Custom Definition
(To customize your definition, please complete the Custom Definition of Compensation Addendum.)

V. Valuation-Required Provisions

Valuation Date: October 23 ,2023

1. Review the valuation results

It is recommended that your MERS representative presents and explains the valuation results to
your municipality before adopting. Please choose one:

(J Our MERS representative presented and explained the valuation results to the

on
(Board, Finance Cmte, etc.) (mm/dd/yyyy)
[} As an authorized representative of this municipality, | Moses Sanzo
. (Name)
County Administrator waive the right for a presentation of the results.

(Title)

This Adoption Agreement will be implemented in conjunction with a current actuarial valuation certified
by a MERS actuary that sets contribution rates.

Annually, the MERS actuary will conduct an actuarial valuation to determine the employers’
contribution rates. Employers are responsible for payment of said contributions at the rate, in the form
and at the time that MERS determines.

[ S S P e R A Al A A R B 0 S i S St W S e A A WS 1 M S K e e e Ve, S A 8 SO o e i W Sx e i s ot X 5 |
Form DB-002 (version 2022-10-04) Page 4 of 7



Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement
BT T N A e R S e e L i R R e e B e DT

2. Benefit Multiplier (1%-2.5%, increments of 0.05%) __ 2% % (max 80% for multipliers
over 2.25%)

Check here if multiplier will be effective for existing active members’ future service only (Bridged
Benefit as of effective date on page 1)

If checked, select one below:

(0 Termination Final Average Compensation (calculated over the members entire
wage history)

2 Frozen Final Average Compensation (FAC is calculated twice, once for the
timeframe that matches the original multiplier, and once for the new multiplier)

3. Final Average Compensation (Min 3 yr, increments of 1 yr) 3 years
4. Vesting (5 -10 yrs, incrementsof 1yr)__ 10 vyears

5. Normal Retirement Age will be the later of: 0
selected above (#4).

(any age from 60-70), or the vesting provision

6. Required employee contribution (Increments of 0.01%) __ 2.53 %

N

. Unreduced Early Retirement/Service Requirements:

m Age 50 - 54 Service between 25 and 30 years

(J Age 55-65 Service between 15 and 30 years

[J Service only (must be any number from 20 — 30 years accrued service):

(0 Age + Service Points (total must be from 70 - 90): points

8. Other
(J Surviving Spouse will receive 50% of Straight Life benefit without a reduction to the
employees’ benefit (also known as an RS50)
(J Duty death or disability enhancement (add up to additional 10 years of service credit not to
exceed 30 years of service)
[J Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) - If selected, complete the following:
e (Credited interest rate: % (please select either 0 or 3%)

e The employer, if selected, will delay a Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) during the
DROP period (skip if not applicable):[7] Yes {7] No

e (Credited payment percentage will be: % (enter a number from 10-100% in
increments of 10%) throughout the duration of the DROP period.

Form DB-002 (version 2022-10-04) Page 5 of 7



Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement

- B R e S e e I SN

(J Annuity Withdrawal Program (AWP)

Calculation of the actuarial equivalent of the lump sum distribution made under AWP will be

done using:

[ Interest rate for employee contributions as determined by the Retirement Board, or
{J MERS’ assumed rate of return as of the date of the distribution.

9. Cost-of-Living Adjustment

(0 Al current retirees as of effective date
{71 Retirees who retire between
/01/ and /01/

(0  Future retirees who retire after
effective date

Increase of % or$ per month

Increase of % or $ per month

Select one:
Annual automatic increase
{7 One-time increase

(0  Annual automatic increase

Select one:
(0 Compounding
fJ  Non-compounding

Select one:
Compounding
[J  Non-compounding

Employees must be retired months
(6-12 months, increments of 1 month)

Employees must be retired months
(6-12 months, increments of 1 month)

[0  Check here if the existing COLA will be bridged for active participants as of the effective date
selected on this form. Benefits accrued for service after the effective date will have no COLA
increase applied.

10. Service Credit Purchase Estimates are:

®] Not permitted
1 Permitted

VI. Appointing MERS as the Plan Administrator

The Employer hereby agrees to the provisions of this MERS Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement and
appoints MERS as the Plan Administrator pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Plan. The Employer
also agrees that in the event of any conflict between the MERS Plan Document and the MERS Defined Benefit
Plan Adoption Agreement, the provisions of the Plan Document control.

VIl. Modification Of The Terms Of The Adoption Agreement

If the Employer desires to amend any of its elections contained in this Adoption Agreement, including
attachments, the Governing Body or Chief Judge, by resolution or official action accepted by MERS, must adopt
a new Adoption Agreement. The amendment of the new Agreement is not effective until approved by MERS.

Form DB-002 (version 2022-10-04) Page 6 of 7



Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement
R B N T e e e A T S T S
VIil. Enforcement

1. The Employer acknowledges that the Michigan Constitution of 1963, Article 9, Section 24, provides
that accrued financial benefits arising under a public Employer’s retirement plan are a contractual
obligation of the Employer that may not be diminished or impaired, and prohibits the use of the
Employer’s required current service funding to finance unfunded accrued liabilities.

2. The Employer agrees that, pursuant to the Michigan Constitution, its obligations to pay required
contributions are contractual obligations to its employees and to MERS and may be enforced in a
court of competent jurisdiction;

3. In accordance with the Constitution and this Agreement, if at any time the balance standing to the
Employer’s credit in the reserve for employer contributions and benefit payments is insufficient
to pay all service benefits due and payable to the entity’s retirees and beneficiaries, the Employer
agrees and covenants to promptly remit to MERS the amount of such deficiency as determined by
the Retirement Board within thirty (30) days notice of such deficiency.

4. The Employer acknowledges that wage and service reports are due monthly, and the employee
contributions (if any) and Employer contributions are due and payable monthly, and must be
submitted in accordance with the MERS Enforcement Procedure for Prompt Reporting and
Payment, the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference.

5. Should the Employer fail to make its required contribution(s) when due, the retirement benefits due
and payable by MERS on behalf of the entity to its retirees and beneficiaries may be suspended
until the delinquent payment is received by MERS. MERS may implement any applicable interest
charges and penalties pursuant to the MERS Enforcement Procedure for Prompt Reporting and
Payment and Plan Document Section 79, and take any appropriate legal action, including but
not limited to filing a lawsuit and reporting the entity to the Treasurer of the State of Michigan in
accordance with MCL 141.1544(d), Section 44 of PA 436 of 2012, as may be amended.

6. The Employer acknowledges that changes to the Employer's MERS Defined Benefit Plan must be
made in accordance with the MERS Plan Document and applicable law, and agrees that MERS
will not administer any such changes unless the MERS Plan Document and applicable law permit
same, and MERS is capable of administering same.

IX. Execution
Authorized Designee of Governing Body of Municipality or Chief Judge of Court

The foregoing Adoption Agreement is hereby approved by on
(Name of Approving Employer)
the day of , 20

Authorized signature:

Title:

Received and Approved by the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan

Dated: , 20 Signature:

(Authorized MERS Signatory)

Form DB-002 (version 2022-10-04) Page 7 of 7



Addendum for Plan
Closures, Freezes and Conversions

1184 Municipal Way Lansing, MI 48917 | 800.767.MERS (6377) | Fax 517.703.9711

©MERS

Municipal Employees' Retirement System

This form is to be used for a participating municipality or court to request to close one or more of its
divisions of Defined Benefit, Defined Contribution or Hybrid (each “Plan” or collectively, “the Plans”), and
advise MERS what action will be taken for existing plan participants and new enroliments. The associated
Plan Closures, Freezes and Conversions Policy and Procedure, which provides administrative procedures
to implement the terms of the MERS Plan Document, is incorporated by reference into this Addendum,
which is used to collect the municipality or court’s request. All requirements in the Policy are at all times
subject to the requirements of the MERS Actuarial Policy. Nothing in this form or the Policy is intended to
conflict with the requirements of the Plans or MERS Actuarial Policy or any more restrictive requirement
imposed by law, any of which may be amended by the MERS Retirement Board at any time.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION:
Closing MERS Defined Benefit plan(s) requires an actuarial projection study under the MERS Actuarial Policy.

The MERS Actuarial Policy provides for different amortization periods for closed or frozen divisions.

Upon closing or freezing the division(s), the required employer contribution will change to a monthly
flat dollar amount instead of a percentage of payroll. Any existing employer caps will no longer be
administered.

MERS service may not be combined with non-MERS service under the new plan to meet vesting and
eligibility requirements.

l. Closing one or more divisions and impacts on existing employees

Name: Lapeer Co L 4403

(Municipality name) (Municipality number)

hereby elects to close the following division(s):

(Division number)
under the following plan type:

[®] Defined Benefit () Defined Contribution () Hybrid Effective date: 01/01/2024

(DD/MM/YYYY)

Form ME-006 (version 2022-12-15) Page 1 of 5



Addendum for Plan Closures, Freezes and Conversions
0N ; B S A R s e R A B B A B A P s s R B T R S AN S A M o S e

In doing so, the following action will be taken and with impact existing covered employees as outlined

(select one per form):

Action taken on the division
Close only

Impact to existing employees
No impact to covered employees, benefit continues to accrue.

Plan is closed to new hires, rehires and transfers.

Close division with option to
Convert**

Covered employees may

e Remain in the existing plan where the benefit continues to
accrue, OR

e Elect to Convert* their accrued benefit to the newly selected
plan and commence coverage under the Plan.

Close division with option to
Freeze*™*

Covered employees may

e Remain in the existing plan where benefit continues to accrue,
OR

e Elect to Freeze existing benefit (no future accrual) and
commence coverage under new Plan.

Close division, with options
to Convert* or Freeze***

Covered employees may

° Remain in the existing plan where the benefit continues to
accrue, OR

e Elect to Convert** their accrued benefit and commence
coverage under the newly selected Plan, OR

e Elect to Freeze existing benefit (no future accrual) and
commence coverage under the newly selected Plan.

Close division, Freeze*** is
mandatory, with or without
option to Convert™*

Covered employees will cease to accrue service under the prior Plan
and will commence coverage under the new Plan, and may convert
their service under the prior Plan to one under the new Plan.

Close division with
mandatory Freeze**
division, no future Plan

Covered employees will cease to accrue future benefit and will
not be enrolled in any Plan.

Form ME-006 (version 2022-12-15)

Page 2 of 5



Addendum for Plan Closures, Freezes and Conversions

Il. Impacts to future participants
New hires, rehires and transfers of the division identified above will be enrolled in (check one):

E] the following MERS plan (a corresponding Adoption Agreement for the new plan is required:
Defined Benefit Defined Contribution Hybrid .457

(D) the following non-MERS plan:
Plan provider name:

Plan type:

No retirement plan.
Not applicable - division position(s) discontinued, no future hires are eligible

lll. Conversion for Active Employees, where applicable (available in limited transactions, see here for an outline)

This employee option is only available where any employee contribution rate in the current plan is identical
to the employee contribution rate in the plan to which the current plan is closing/freezing.

Will current division members be offered the option to convert their accrued benefit to the new plan and
commence coverage under that plan?

@ Yes No Not applicable to this transaction

Conversion Option — additional required information if Employer elected to offer Conversion Option

If the employer has elected to offer current members of the closing or freezing division a one-time
irrevocable option to convert, this will result in 1) conversion of their existing accrued benefit into a lump
sum into the new Plan, and 2) future coverage under the new Plan.

The election to convert shall be effective at least three, and no more than six months following the
effective date of the new plan as listed on page 1 or MERS’ receipt of the addendum (whichever is latest),
which shall be the first day of , 20 (Conversion Date). If either the new Plan or
the closing plan has mandatory employee contributions, they must be identical in both plans in order to
offer employees a conversion or freeze option.

A. Conversions from the Defined Benefit Plan to MERS Defined Contribution Plan, MERS Hybrid
Plan or Non-MERS Qualified Defined Contribution Money Purchase Plan

For each current member of a Defined Benefit closing or freezing division who irrevocably elects to
convert to one under the new plan and commence coverage under that new plan, MERS shall transfer
to the member’s credit the greater of the following to the Defined Contribution Plan, the Hybrid Plan
defined contribution component or a non-MERS qualified defined contribution money purchase plan:

(1) The member’s accumulated contributions;
OR

(2) The actuarial present value of the accrued benefit associated with the members’ coverage under
the closed / frozen Defined Benefit Plan, after the conversion level percentage selected by the
participating municipality below has been applied.

R s R P RN B % A N S L R T B9 S8 P ST A O S R SR O AR WA e 22, AR SR AL Bt ks WA DT L SO R A Bt S 4517 N 0]
Form ME-006 (version 2022-12-15) Page 3 of 5



Addendum for Plan Closures, Freezes and Conversions

Conversion Percentage Selection

The conversion calculation shall be performed as provided in the MERS Actuarial Policy. Under
that Policy, the employer shall select the Conversion Percentage (which may not be less than the
division’s actual funded level as determined in the actuarial study nor greater than 100%). If a
Conversion Percentage is selected that is greater than the Division’s actuarial funded percentage,
as set out below, the employer is required to remit to MERS full payment for the additional liability
for all converting members within 90 days of the Conversion Date.

The Conversion Percentage shall be (select one):
E] Equal to the division’s actuarially determined termination liability funded percentage (not more than 100%)
% greater than the actuarially determined termination liability funded percentage (not more than 100%)

If the employer offers current employees the option to convert their closed or frozen benefit
to a non-MERS Qualified defined contribution money purchase plan, the member will become
immediately vested in any non-vested employer contributions.

B. Conversions from the Defined Contribution Plan to the MERS Hybrid Plan (Defined Contribution
component) or a Non-MERS Qualified Defined Contribution Money Purchase Plan

For each current participant of a Defined Contribution Plan who irrevocably elects to convert where
the plan is closing to new hires, or where a current participant’s service is frozen, and coverage will
commence under the MERS Hybrid Plan, MERS shall transfer the full value of the participant’s Defined
Contribution Plan account (employer contributions, employee contributions and accumulated service)
to the MERS Hybrid Plan (defined contribution component) and used toward vesting under the plan.
Service will be recognized in the MERS Hybrid (defined benefit component) for vesting and eligibility
only, with benefited service in the defined benefit component of MERS Hybrid plan beginning with the
new plan effective date.

If the employer offers current employees the option to convert their closed or frozen benefit to a
non-MERS Qualified defined contribution money purchase plan, the member will become immediately
vested in any non-vested employer contributions.

Form ME-006 (version 2022-12-15) ‘ Page 4 of 5



Addendum for Plan Closures, Freezes and Conversions
5 R T Y 3 o A B N Ny A P e A Y A X 1 B ST ST G A, A

IV. Closing with Mandatory or Optional Freeze for Current Active Employees, where applicable

VI.

(available in limited transactions)

If either the new Plan or the closing plan has mandatory employee contributions, they must be identical
in both plans in order to offer employees a conversion or freeze option. Alternatively, the employer may
mandate that the benefit accrual be frozen instead of making it optional for active employees. For an
optional freeze, employees must be given a minimum of three months, and no longer than six months to
make their election (3 to 6 months after Effective Date list on page 1).

Freeze effective the first day of: , 20

With respect to the Defined Benefit or Hybrid (defined benefit portion) Plans that are closing and will
freeze (either as a result of the plan freezing, or an individual option to freeze), the members’ Final Average
Compensation and Service Credit will be frozen and unchanged as of the effective date of the freeze. If
the new plan is the MERS Defined Benefit, Defined Contribution or Hybrid Plan, service for vesting and
eligibility purposes will continue to accrue on the frozen plan. If the new plan is the MERS 457 Plan, a
non-MERS plan or no retirement plan, all benefits shall be 100% vested.

With respect to the Defined Contribution or Hybrid (defined contribution portion) Plans that are closing,
for current members who elect to freeze this benefit (or that are mandated to freeze), their Final Average
Compensation and Service Credit of their Defined Benefit calculation shall be frozen and unchanged as of
the Effective Date of the freeze. If the new plan is the MERS Defined Benefit, Defined Contribution or Hybrid
Plan, service for vesting and eligibility purposes will continue to accrue on the frozen plan. If the new plan is
the MERS 457 Plan, a non-MERS plan or no retirement plan, all benefits shall be 100% vested.

With respect to the Defined Contribution or Hybrid (defined contribution portion) Plans that are closing
to new hires as mandatory or optional freeze for current members, their Defined Contribution account will
no longer receive any further employer or employee contributions. If the new plan is the MERS Defined
Benefit, Defined Contribution or Hybrid Plan only, vesting service will continue to accrue. If the new plan
is the MERS 457 Plan, a non-MERS plan or no retirement plan, all benefits shall be 100% vested.

Execution
Authorized Designee of Governing Body of Municipality or Chief Judge of Court

The foregoing Adoption Agreement is hereby approved by on
the day of 20 (Name of Approving Employer)

Authorized signature:

Title:

Receivéd and Approved by the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan

Dated: , 20 Signature:

(Authorized MERS Signatory)

Form ME-006 (version 2022-12-15) Page 5 of 5



Ha
REQUEST FOR ACTION

DATE: December 11, 2023
X REQUEST FOR ACTION

FOR YOUR INFORMATION
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

TO: Lapeer County Board of Commissioners

FROM: Administration/BOC

3 3k sk sk ok ok ok skook ok ok ok ok ok ok ok sk sk sk sk sk ok sk sk sk sk sk ok sk sk ok sk sk sk sk ok ok sk ok sk sk sk 3k 3k sk sk 3k sk sk sk sk 3k 3k ok 5k 3k 3k sk ok ok ok ok 3k ok ok ok 3k 3k % ok sk ok sk sk ok

SUMMARY OF REQUEST / INFORMATION: The previous BOC entered into an
Engagement of General/Civil Legal Counsel agreement with Prosecuting Attorney John
Miller on March 11, 2021 for his term of office through December 31, 2024 (See BOC
Motion #77-21).

The current board approved an increase in the annual salary for the Prosecuting Attorney
on June 22, 2023 to $145,000 (motion #187-2023), then approved motion #189-23,
providing a written Notice of Intent to the Prosecuting Attorney of the Board’s intent to
seek alternate corporate counsel services. Therefore, pursuant to the motions and the
terms contained in the original agreement, the Board will need to terminate the
agreement with John Miller effective December 31, 2023 if they approve the new services
agreement with The Kelly Firm, PLC. The termination of the agreement will also
eliminate the additional $17,000 flat fee stipend allocated to John Miller for corporation
counsel services.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

CONTACT PERSON(S): Moses Sanzo, County Controller/Doreen Clark, Office Manager
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:

DRAFT MOTIONS:

Motion by supported by pursuant to the written
notification given to Prosecuting Attorney John Miller in Board Motion #189-2023 on
June 22, 2023, of the Board’s intent to seek alternate corporate counsel services, to
terminate the Engagement of General/Civil Legal Counsel services agreement that was
previously approved in motion #77-21, effective December 31, 2023, with the
understanding that this will also eliminate the additional $17,000 stipend allocated to
John Miller for corporation counsel services; and further, that this Board wishes to extend
sincere appreciation to Mr. Miller for his services over the last three years.




Regular Board Meeting March 11, 2021 Page 2 of 8

77-21

Motion by Warren, supported by Zender, to approve the Legal Engagement Agreement
for Corporation Counsel Services, with John D. Miller, Prosecutor, and further: to authorize
the Chair/Vice-Chair to sign said agreement. Roll Call Vote: Warren, aye; Henning, nay;,
Jarvis, aye; Miller, nay; Schneider, aye; Zender, aye; Roy, aye. 5 ayes, 2 nays. Motion
carried.

78-21

Motion by Schneider, supported by Zender, to approve the contract between the Thumb
Area Regional Community Corrections Advisory Board (TARCCAB) and Career Directions
Inc. for Community Corrections Services, as submitted; and further, to authorize the

Chair/Vice-Chair to sign said contract. Motion carried.

79-21

Motion by Schneider, supported by Zender, to approve the contract between Thumb Area
Regional Community Corrections Advisory Board (TARCCAB) and Tuscola County for
Community Corrections Services, as submitted; and further, to authorize the Chair/Vice-

Chair to sign said contract. Motion carried.

80-21

Motion by Schneider, supported by Zender, to approve the contract between the Thumb
Area Regional Community Corrections Advisory Board (TARCCAB) and List
Psychological Services, PLC for Community Corrections Services, as submitted; and
further, to authorize the Chair/Vice-Chair to sign said contract. Motion carried.

81-21

Motion by Schneider, supported by Zender, to approve the contract between the Thumb
Area Regional Community Corrections Advisory Board (TARCCAB) and the Lapeer
County Health Department Alcohol Information and Counseling Center (AICC), for
Community Corrections Services, as submitted; and further, to authorize the Chair/Vice-

Chair to sign said contract. Motion carried.

82-21
Motion by Schneider, supported by Zender, to approve the contract between the Thumb

Area Regional Community Corrections Advisory Board (TARCCAB) and Tri Cap, for
Community Corrections Services, as submitted; and further, to authorize the Chair/Vice-

Chair to sign said contract. Motion carried.

83-21

Motion by Schneider, supported by Zender, to approve the contract between the Thumb
Area Regional Community Corrections Advisory Board (TARCCAB) and Sanilac County
Counseling Services, for Community Corrections Services, as submitted; and further, to

authorize the Chair/Vice-Chair to sign said contract. Motion carried.

84-21
Motion by Schneider, supported by Zender, to approve the contract between the Thumb

Area Regional Community Corrections Advisory Board (TARCCAB) and Sanilac County
for Community Corrections Services, as submitted; and further, to authorize the

Chair/Vice-Chair to sign said agreement. Motion carried.

DRAFT



ENGAGEMENT OF GENERAL/CIVIL LEGAL COUNSEL

WHEREAS, pursuant to state law, the County Prosecutor may provide legal
counsel to the County Board and other County officers;

WHEREAS, pursuant to state law, the County Board may retain outside counsel
to perform these services;

WHEREAS, the County Board has not utilized the County Prosecutor in recent
times in that capacity;

WHEREAS, the parties recognize the wide breadth and complexity of County
legal issues today;

WHEREAS, many of them, however, can be handled in-house without the
necessity of retaining outside counsel; and

WHEREAS, the County Board and Prosecutor believe going forward that it would
be in the best interests of the County to formalize the responsibilities of the
Prosecutor’s service in the Civil/General Counsel role on certain matters which will,
both parties believe, result in a more efficient delivery model of legal advice and a
stabilization or reduction in overall costs of attorney fees;

WHEREAS, based upon the experience of the County Board and the County
Prosecutor, they believe that the format established below will best serve the residents
and the County efficlently in delivering legal service and, accordingly, enter into the
following agreement.

1. The client in this matter is the County of Lapeer represented by the Board
of Commissioners and the County Administrator/Comptroller. The Prosecuting Attorney,
John D. Miller, will be exclusively engaged to advise Lapeer County through the Board
of Commissioners solely in connection with general civil legal matters that do not
involve areas of Labor and Employment Law and claims for money damages covered
by the MMRMA.

2. The scope of this exclusive engagement agreement is to offer legal
opinions and advice to the Board of Commissioners and County
Administrator/Comptroller on matters that involve the County of Lapeer and where
appropriate appear as legal counsel on behalf of Lapeer County.

3 As Prosecuting Attorney and General Civil Counsel for the County of
Lapeer, legal representation, legal review and legal opinions shall be provided by the
Prosecuting Attorney upon request by the Board of Commissioners and/or the County
Administrator/Comptroller. Department heads of the County may seek legal review or



representation after a request for review has been approved by the Board of
Commissioners and/or the County Administrator/Comptroller.

4, Term of engagement, conclusion. The term of this agreement shall be
the term of office for the Prosecuting Attomey unless terminated as noted elsewhere in
this paragraph. Unless terminated, this agreement shall renew automatically upon re-
election of this Prosecuting Attomey upon commencement of his new term.

In the event that John D. Miller vacates the Office of Lapeer County Prosecuting
Attomey for any reason, this agreement shall also automatically terminate.

5. Termination. This agreement may be terminated by either party 30 days
after written notice electronically or otherwise is provided to either party. The parties
acknowledge that in the event that the representation involves a matter before a court,
an order to withdraw as counsel for the County will likely need court approval to
complete withdrawal.

6. Exclusive representation. By entering this exclusive legal
representation agreement, the Prosecuting Attorney warrants and covenants that he
will NOT represent any new parties or individuals after consummation of this agreement
that are not involved or employed by Lapeer County and specifically approved by the
Chairman of the Board of Commissioners and/or the County Administrator/Comptroller.

7. Any pre-existing legal representations that Prosecuting Attomey John D.
Miller may have as of the execution date of this agreement are not in violation of this
agreement and the Prosecuting Attorney may conclude those pre-existing matters as
long as they do not present a conflict with hls officlal duties or the general duties
referred to under this agreement.

8. This agreement specifically excludes the following legal matters wherein
the County already has representation including but not limited to: labor relations and
labor and employment law and lawsuits alleging money damages that are covered by
MMRMA.

9. The consideration for exclusive representation of the County of Lapeer is a
$17,000.00 flat fee payable in equal installments of $4,250.00 quarterly. Monies paid to
the Prosecutor under this Agreement will not be includable in final average
compensation and are not pensionable.

10.  The parties understand and agree that execution of this agreement does
not restrict legal representation of Lapeer County exclusively to the Prosecuting
Attorney. Legal matters may arise from time to time that may require legal expertise in a
specialized area of law that is beyond the skill set of general counsel and In those
circumstances Lapeer County may desire alternative supplemental legal representation.



Nothing in this agreement restricts the County from employing additional legal
representation as it determines necessary.

11.  Confidentiality. The Prosecuting Attorney shall employ all rules of
Professional Responsibility that binds all licensed attorneys in the State of Michigan.
This agreement does not compel the Prosecuting Attorney to violate the rules of
Professional Responsibility and the Prosecuting Attorney may decline tasks and or
requests that violate the Michigan Rules of Professional Responsibility without
consequence to this agreement.

12.  Amendments. This agreement may only be amended by a written
document signed by the parties herein that specifically incorporates this agreement or
by amendments specifically agreed upon.

Agreed and accepted at a vote of the Board of Commissioners held on

Chairman of the Board of Commissioners

By ls@ C\M\T\ L‘-L\

Date: 3

Agreed anj accepted to by Prosecuting Attorney, John D. Miller.

<< A ';'// é‘/ 222




Het

PROPOSED MOTION
FROM THE
NOVEMBER 30, 20323
PROPERTIES COMMITTEE MEETING

1. Motion by Knisely, supported by Mast, to recommend to the Full Board,
pursuant to the recommendation of the Properties Committee, to approve
the installation of security cameras on the exterior of the CMH Building and
Harmony Hall, to be paid for by CMH Funding, at a cost not to exceed
$15,500.00, at no additional cost to the County’s General Fund. Motion
carried.



PROPOSED MOTION
FROM THE
DECEMBER 8, 2023
BROADBAND COMMITTEE
MEETING

1. Motion by Mast, supported by Sanzo, to recommend to the
next Committee of the Whole Meeting (with authority to act)
to adopt the attached revised draft Resolution in support
Broadband expansion in Lapeer County. Motion carried.



WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

REVISED
DRAFT

RESOLUTION REGARDING
BROADBAND INTERNET ACCESS

in Lapeer County alone 62% of households reported not having any connectivity
to broadband at their homes; and,

in Lapeer County, 77% of Broadband Survey respondents with internet access
reported not having the minimum of 25mb download/3 mb upload speeds to be
considered a broadband connection; and,

in Lapeer County, 98% of Broadband Survey respondents with internet access
reported not having the modern standard of 100mb download/20mb upload speeds
to be considered a broadband connection; and,

the digital divide is exacerbating the homework gap and learning for students
without broadband access at home; and,

lack of broadband access negatively impacts economic development, property
values, personal prosperity, education, health and safety and overall quality of life;
and,

having broadband access enables cost savings in many areas of personal
commerce, yielding hundreds of thousands of dollars each year in overspending
by those without broadband; and,

communities without broadband have difficulty leveraging capabilities like
TeleHealth, online banking, virtual meetings, working remotely and distance
learning; and,

broadband access can combat the isolation experienced by our seniors and those
living alone by enabling them to stay connected to family and friends.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners urges
Internet Service Providers (ISPs) to leverage their resources, be future-focused and expand
high-speed internet access to all residents of Lapeer County, Michigan.

Tom Kohlman, Chairman
Lapeer County Board of Commissioners

| hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was adopted by a majority vote at the regular meeting of the Board of
Commissioners of the County of Lapeer, State of Michigan, on this 14th day of December, 2023.

Theresa Spencer, County Clerk
Clerk of the Board



